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Information about and copies of supporting materials on agenda items are available for public review at 999 Rush 
Creek Place, Novato, at the Reception Desk, or by calling the District Secretary at (415) 897-4133.  A fee may be 
charged for copies.  District facilities and meetings comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act.  If special 
accommodations are needed, please contact the District Secretary as soon as possible, but at least two days prior to 
the meeting. 

 

ATTENTION:  This will be a virtual meeting of the Board of Directors pursuant 

 to Executive Order N-29-20 issued by the Governor of the State of California. 
There will not be a public location for participating in this meeting, but any interested member of the public  

can participate telephonically by utilizing the dial-in information printed on this agenda. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Please note:  In the event of technical difficulties during the meeting, the District Secretary will adjourn the 
meeting and the remainder of the agenda will be rescheduled for a future special meeting which shall be 

open to the public and noticed pursuant to the Brown Act. 

NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT 
AGENDA - REGULAR MEETING 

August 18, 2020 – 6:00 p.m. 
Location: Virtual Meeting 

Novato, California 

  
 

Video Zoom Method 

 
 CLICK ON LINK BELOW:     SIGN IN TO ZOOM: 

 

 Go to:  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/8349174264 OR  Meeting ID:  8349174264 
 
 Password: 466521      Password:  466521 

Call in Method: 
 
Dial:   +1 669 900 9128 
   +1 253 215 8782 
   +1 346 248 7799 
   +1 301 715 8592 
   +1 312 626 6799 
   +1 646 558 8656 
 
   Meeting ID: 834 917 4264# 
 
   Participant ID:  # 
 
   Password: 466521# 
 

For clarity of discussion, the Public is requested to MUTE except: 
1. During Open Time for public expression item. 

2. Public comment period on agenda items. 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/8349174264
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Est. 

Time Item Subject 
6:00 p.m.  CALL TO ORDER  

 1.  APPROVE MINUTES FROM REGULAR MEETING, August 4, 2020 

 2.  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  

 3.  OPEN TIME: (Please observe a three-minute time limit) 

  This section of the agenda is provided so that the public may express comments on any issues not 
listed on the agenda that are of interest to the public and within the jurisdiction of the North Marin Water 
District.  When comments are made about matters not on the agenda, Board members can ask 
questions for clarification, respond to statements or questions from members of the public, refer a 
matter to staff, or direct staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda.  The public may also 
express comments on agenda items at the time of Board consideration. 

 4.  STAFF/DIRECTORS REPORTS 

 5.  MONTHLY PROGRESS REPORT  

 6.  PRELIMINARY FY 2019/2020 FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

  CONSENT CALENDAR 

  The General Manager has reviewed the following items.  To his knowledge, there is no opposition to 
the action.  The items can be acted on in one consolidated motion as recommended or may be 
removed from the Consent Calendar and separately considered at the request of any person. 

  Consent - Approve Water Agreement                                     Type      DU      EU 

 7.        Hamilton Village Water Facilities – APN: 157-970-03           THC      75        58 

  ACTION CALENDAR 

 8.  Approve: Renew Declaration of Local Emergency Related to COVID-19 Pandemic 

  INFORMATION ITEMS 

 9.  WAC/TAC Meeting Update – August 3, 2020 

 10.  MISCELLANEOUS 
Disbursements – Dated August 6, 2020 
NMWD Candidates Who Have Filed Papers for Office – November 3, 2020  

  
News Articles: 
DWR head: SGMA will bring more certainty to farmers 
Coronavirus shutdown causes new risk at CDC: Legionnaire’s disease 
The Virus Detectives: Tracking COVID-19 in Bay Area Wastewater 
COVID-19 Relief Negotiations Remain at Stalemate: NACWA Continues Strong Push for   
     Water Assistance 
Competition set in five council races in election 

7:00 p.m. 11.  ADJOURNMENT 
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Item #1

DRAFT
NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

August 4,2020

oALL TO ORDER

president Joly announced that due to the Coronavirus outbreak and pursuant to Executive

Order N-2g-20 issued by the Governor of the State of California this was a virtual meeting.

president Joly called the regular meeting of the Board of Directors of North Marin Water District

to order at6:o2p.m. and the agenda was accepted as presented. President Joly added that there

was not a public location for participating in this meeting, but any interested members of the public

could participate remotely by utilizing the video or phone conference dial-in method using

information printed on the agenda.

president Joly welcomed the public to participate in the remote meeting and asked that

they mute themselves, except during open time and while making comments on the agenda items.

president Joly noted that due to the virlual nature of the meeting he will conduct a roll call from

the Directors. A roll callwas done, allwere in remote attendance therefore establishing a quorum'

participating remotely were Directors Jack Baker, Rick Fraites, James Grossi, Michael Joly and

Stephen Petterle.

President Joly announced in the event of technical difficulties during the meeting, the

District Secretary will adjourn the meeting and the remainder of the agenda will be rescheduled

for a future special meeting which shall be open to the public and noticed pursuant to the Brown

Act.

Mr. Mclntyre performed a roll call of staff, parlicipating remotely were Drew Mclntyre

(General Manager), Terrie Kehoe (District Secretary), Julie Blue (Auditor-Controller), Tony

Arendell (Construction/Maintenance Superintendent), Robert Clark (Operations/Maintenance

Superintendent) and Monica Juarez (Cashier/Receptionist)'

President Joly announced for those joining the virtual meeting from the public to identify

themselves. Vivian Housen from V. W. Housen and Associates was in remote attendance.

MINUTES

On motion of Director Fraites, seconded by Director Petterle the Board approved minutes

from the July 21,2020 meeting by the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None
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ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

GENERAL GER'S REPORT

Radio lnterview with KWMR on Julv 29th

Mr. Mclntyre announced he participated in a thirty-minute interview that included

background of our water system, sources of water, dry year conditions, water conservation and

future challenges for the West Marin system. Mr. Mclntyre also discussed the 25o/o dry year

mandatory conservation requirement and the salinity issues with the Coast Guard wells and the

District's desire to increase water production at the Gallagher ranch. He added it was a good

opporlunity to get our message out to our West Marin customers.

2020 Novato Leade rshin Graduate

Mr. Mclntyre recognized Terrie Kehoe as the District's 2020 Leadership Novato Graduate.

He noted that her class was the first to graduate under global health pandemic conditions. He

stated that there was some difficulty for the class to transition from physical meetings to zoom

meetings, but they were up to the challenge and successful. Mr. Mclntyre noted that Novato

Leadership is working on next year's format and will start the new class in virtual mode.

Assistant / Associate Enqineer Recruitment

Mr. Mclntyre updated the Board on the current Assistant/ Associate Engineer recruitment.

He stated the position opened on July 28th and will close on August 18th. Mr. Mclntyre added that

either the Assistant or Associate level position will be filled after a review of the applicant's

qualifications.

Gallaqher Ranch Stream Bank Stabilization Proiect

Mr. Mclntyre reminded the Board that at the last meeting he reported that the project was

substantially complete and now he was happy to report it is 100% complete. Mr. Mclntyre stated

staff are working on a final closeout report and expect to submit a request for a 75o/o

reimbursement to the Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) towards the end of

August. He added a final accounting will be presented to the Board at a future meeting.

Mr. Mclntyre announced he will be on vacation from August 6 through August 14 and Ms,

Blue will be in charge during his absence.

OPEN TIME

President Joly asked if anyone from the public wished to bring up an item not on the

agenda and there was no response.
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STA s PORTS

Director Baker asked if staff was contemplating doing work near schools when they are

not in session. Mr. Mclntyre responded that whenever possible, construction projects near

schools are typically scheduled during summer or other þreaks throughout the year when school

is not in session. Director Baker stated this year is much different with the COVID-19 situation

and that staff may need to see if the school schedule has changed in case construction work

needs to be rescheduled. Mr. Mclntyre stated this will occur. Director Baker stated he noticed

Maggiora Ghillotti was doing work on County Club and Alameda de La Loma and asked if they

were working for NMWD. Mr. Arendell stated he thought it may be a project with Novato Sanitary

District.

Director Fraites announced Chris DeGabriele contacted him about two months ago to see

if he was interested in reading a book he had, The Dreamt Land: Chasing Water and Dust Across

California by Mark Arax. He stated it is about the history of water policy in California. Director

Fraites said it was depressing and an eye opener and covered the time of the Gold Rush to the

present. He highly recommended the book and asked if any of the other Board Members would

be interested in reading it. Directors Petterle and Baker said they were both interested.

Mr. Clark reported on the current increase of salinity at the Coast Guard Wells that

occurred in July. He stated in June the Point Reyes system was below the reportable limit,

however it jumped up in July and now sodium is over the 50 mg per liter limit. Mr. Clark stated

that the low Lagunitas creek flows are aggravating the increased salinity conditions which in turn

causes an increase in disinfectant byproducts within the system. Mr. Clark stated Mr. Ramudo,

Mr. Stompe and himself are working on keeping the salinity level under control.

CONSENT CALENDAR

On the motion of Director Petterle, and seconded by Director Baker the Board approved

the following items on the consent calendar by the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

WATER AGR ruT RESTDENCE INN BY RRIOTT- 7546 REDWOOD BL VD-- Novato

APN 1 1-06

The Board approved the water agreement for Residence lnn by Marriott. The project site

is located at7546 Redwood Blvd., Novato and consists of construction of a 1O3-room hotel and

an 8,000 square foot commercial retail building in the former Dairymen's Milling's site.
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TNO LIBRAR 1720 NO

NOVATO APN:141-201-19

The Board approved the water agreement for Novato Public Library Fire Service. The

project is located at 1720 Novato Blvd., Novato and proposes a new six-inch fire service and

hydrant close to the entrance of the building.

ACTION ITEMS

RENEW TION OF LOCAL Y RELATED TO COVID- 19 PANDEMIC

Mr. Mclntyre requested the Board find that there still exists a need to continue the State

of Emergency due to the COVID-19 pandemic as reflected by Resolution No. 20-07 .

Mr. Mclntyre reminded the Board that staff has been operating under partial Emergency

Operations Center (EOC) activation since March 18th and summarized various key measures

implemented by the District's emergency management team since that time. He stated the

District's staff are physically separated as much as possible including having some employees

work from home, but all critical operations needed to maintain essential services continue. Mr.

Mclntyre also noted we have been operating with 85% of staff on-site or in the field. He apprised

the Board that currently we have no employees who have been instructed to be isolated or are

self-quarantined.

Mr. Mclntyre updated the Board on current coronavirus conditions in Marin County. Mr.

Mclntyre reported on July 13,2020 Governor Newson issued a statewide order to dial back on

recent loosening of restrictions due to a significant increase in the number of confirmed cases.

Mr. Mclntyre repoded the District's COVID-19 Preparedness and Response Plan is now

finalized and training has been completed by staff. He noted the plan is a living document and

will continue to be updated as needed. Mr. Mclntyre announced the walk-in services will be

extended to the end of August and then we will need to review the situation again, adding we will

do what is necessary for the safety of our employees and the public.

Mr, Mclntyre provided a cost summary for COVID related purchases totaling $26,000.

Labor costs have also increased due to additional on-call labor costs at about $2,000 a week, or

a total of $19,000 to date.

Director Grossi asked if the purchase cost summary of $26,000 is the total cost of the

COVID-19 pandemic so far. Mr. Mclntyre responded that the total reported is for purchases made

that were strictly related to COVID and added he will continue to provide a summary to the Board.

Director Grossi stated he thought there were some hidden costs due to how COVID is affecting

the efficiency of the crew, noting there is no way the District can get around this during this time

of pandemic and it is hard to put a number on it. Mr. Mclntyre agreed with Director Grossi's
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statement and stated the additional internal labor costs totaling $19,000 is occurring so specific

people are on standby to prevent cross contamination from one crew to another. Mr. Mclntyre

stated another related cost is with delinquent bills, which is now 1.75o/o of all customers, noting

four months ago it was 1.60/o. He added the District is trying to get a handle on the cost impact

due to delinquent payments and staff are working with customers to set up payment plans.

Director Baker commented that the numbers were not too dramatic.

Director Baker asked if staff have received complaints or feedback about not having

access to the office. Ms. Blue replied that we have had some complaints, most of those are from

people who pay in cash. She noted there were more calls in the beginning, but now that people

realize the situation, the calls have greatly decreased. Director Baker asked if contractors and

developers can make arrangements or appointments to meet engineering staff. Mr. Mclntyre

confirmed. Director Joly asked if staff are seeing more payment activity in the drop box. Ms.

Juarezconfirmed, however it is mostly the people who would have otherwise come into the office

to pay.

On the motion of Director Grossi, and seconded by Director Baker the Board approved

renewal of the Declaration of Local Emergency Related to COVID-19 Pandemic by the following

vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

co^/sutIt^/G SERY/CES AGREEMENT THE OCEANA MARIN SEWER SYSTEM

MANAGEMENT PLAN UPDATE

Mr. Clark announced Vivian Housen our consultant is in attendance, Mr. Clark updated

the Board on the Consulting Services Agreement for the Oceana Marin Sewer System

Management Plan. Staff requested proposals from three consulting firms and recommended

V.W. Housen and Associates. They would perform an audit of the District's existing SSMP

followed by a review of current documents, drawings and operating history. Additionally, the

proposal included development of a pump station emergency response plan for the two pump

stations in the system. Mr. Clark added the requirement for reporting is every five years and this

will help staff meet this requirement.

On the motion of Director Petterle, and seconded by Director Baker the Board authorized

the General Manager to execute a Consulting Engineering Services Agreement with V.W. Housen

and Associates for an amount not to exceed $30,000 by the following vote:
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AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

Ms. Housen thanked the Board.

CONTRACT AMENDMENT FOR SERY/CES _ PES TAL

Mr. Mclntyre presented the contract amendment for engineering services with PES

Environmental. A contract amendment is necessary for exploratory test wells in the Nodh Pasture

at Gallagher Ranch related to development of a second well. Mr. Mclntyre explained last fall's

test drilling was done to find a productive well, but the test well only produced 55 gpm and the

goal was 150gpm. Mr. Mclntyre stated over the last six months they have been able to use

information gained from the Streambank Stabilization project permits to identify better test well

locations closer to Lagunitas Creek.

Director Baker asked if the sites were suggested by the hydrogeologist and Mr. Mclntyre

confirmed. Director Baker expressed his apprehension that maybe the property owners were

influencing the location and he was concerned we were not considering other sites. Mr. Mclntyre

stated PES suggested the area is worth exploring more. Director Grossi asked if all these sites

were still located in the north pasture. Mr. Mclntyre confirmed.

On the motion of Director Baker, and seconded by Director Grossi the Board authorized

the General Manager to amend the Consulting Services Agreement with PES Environmental in

the amount of $70,000 by the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

INFORMATION ITEMS

PRE TANK 4A REPLA _ PROJECT UPDATE

Mr. Mclntyre gave a project update on the PRE Tank 4A Replacement Project. He

reported the date of substantial completion is Novemþer 1 1,2020 and the project was currently

36% complete. Additionally, he noted there were no change orders and he will continue to update

the Board on the progress of the project.

Director Baker asked what the reaction of the neighbors were and if they are happy with

the new water supply. Mr. Mclntyre responded that they are generally supportive. He stated that

a weekly eblast update is being sent out. Mr. Mclntyre noted that they had received complaints

NMWD Draft Minutes 6of7 August 4,2020



203

204

205

206

207

208

209

210

211

212

213

214

215

216

217

218

219

220

221

222

223

224

225

226

227

228

229

230

231

232

233

234

235
236
237

that contract workers were smoking on the site, and a summer rental occupant complained about

noise. He added staff addressed the smoking issue, however there is not much that can be done

about the noise. Director Joly thanked Mr. Jackson for putting the memo together. Mr. Mclntyre

stated that he would like to take this opporlunity to give a shout out to Mr. Jackson for coming

back from retirement and noted he has always been a strong asset to the District.

MISCELLANEOUS

The Board received the following miscellaneous items: Disbursements- Dated July 23,

2OZO, Disbursements- Dated July 30, 2020 and FY20 4th Quarter Labor Cost Report.

The Board received the following news afiicles: Audit pans city for red tape on project

permits - NOVATO; Santa Rosa, Sonoma County collect more than $240 million in PG&E

settlement for 2017 fires; Marin Voice - Common misunderstanding led to Mill Valley mistake;

and State Supreme Court says public employees can't'spike' pensions.

Director Joly recognized Ms. Williamson for her great memo on labor cost, noting that

even with the recent increase in staff we are at budget.

Director Joly asked if the $939,000 CaIPERS unfunded disbursement was expected. Ms.

Blue confirmed, noting that we pay a lump sum in July rather than over twelve months in order to

save on interest.

President Joly asked if there were any comments on the news articles and there was no

reply. He announced on behalf of the Board he would like to thank staff and all those who

participated in the call and congratulated Ms. Kehoe on her completion of Novato Leadership.

ctosED sEss/oN

President Joly adjourned the Board into closed session at 6:55 p.m. in accordance with

California Government Code Section 54957 for Public Employment, Title: Chief

Engineer/Assistant General Manager.

OPEN SESS/ON

Upon returning to the regular session at 7:03 p.m,, President Joly stated that no reportable

action had been taken.

ADJOURNMENT

President Joly adjourned the meeting at7'.27 p.m.

Submitted by

Theresa Kehoe
District Secretary
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Item #5
NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

MONTHLY PROGRESS REPORT FOR July 2020
August 18,2020

1

Novato Potable Water Prod* - RR & STP Combined - in Million Gallons - FYTD

Month FY20/21 FY19/20 FY18/19 FY17/18 FY16/17 21 vs 20 %

July 341.7 331.0 3 0. 8o/o317.7 341.1 3

West Marin Potable Water Production - in Million Gallons - FY to Date
Month FY20/21 FY19/20 FYl8/19 FY17/18 FY16/17 21 vs 20 %

July 8.0 8.9 10.2 9.5 7.9 -1Qo/o

Stafford Tre atment PIant Production - in Million Gallons - FY to Date
Month FY20/21 FY19/20 FY18/19 FY17/18 FY16/17 21 vs 20 %

July 105.8 68.2 78.6 112.6 69.9 55%

Re led Water Production* - in Million Gallons - FY to Date
1 FY19/20 FY17/18 FY16/17 2 ys %

July 39.0 36.5 30.2 27.7 27.1 7%

-Exctudes potable water inpul to the RW system: FY21=7 .4 N4G; FY2O=19.4; FY 19=20.6 MG; FY18=15.8|\lG; FY17=,52MG

t:\ac\excel\w tr use\[product¡on.xlsx]n'ìo rpt

2. Stafford Lake Data

. Spillway elevation is 196.0 feet
** Lake storage less 390 ¡y6 = quantity available for delivery

Temperature (in deqrees)

Minimum Maximum Averaqe
July 2019 (Novato) 54 103 72

Julv 2020 (Novato) 54 103 73

3. Number of Services

July Average

0.01 lnches
0.01 lnches

187.7 Feet
841 MG

Ju !y

0
0
4
4

201I July 2020

0 lnches
0 lnches

183.5 Feet
618 MG

Rainfallthis month
Rainfall this FY to date
Lake elevation* 191.

107

lnches
lnches
Feet
MGLake e**

t{âcìôrcol\wlr uÊo\lÞ¡duolion ¡l6xì6rvtt rE t pl

July 31

NovatoWater' West Marin Water Oceana Marin Swr

FY2O FY1 9 lncr o/o FY2O FY1 9 lncr % FY2O FY1 9 lncr o/o FY2O FY1 9 lncr o/o

Total meters installed
Total meters actirc
Actiw dwelling units

20,780 20,749 0j% 98 95 3.2% 791 791 0.0%

20,559 20,542 0.1o/o 93 91 2.2Yo 782 783 -0.1o/o

24,085 24,076 0.0% 832 833 -0.1o/o 235 235 0.0%

4. Oceana Marin Monthlv Status Report (Julv)

1

Description July 2019 July 2020

Effluent Flow Volume (MG) 0.617 0.611

lrrigation Field Discharge (MG) 0.727 n

Treatment Pond Freeboard (ft) 7.0 5.8

Storage Pond Freeboard (ft) 8.5 9.7

t:\gm\progress report\current progress report jüly 2020.doc



5. Developer Proiects Status RepoÉ (Julv)

Job No Proiect % Çomplete % This month

1.2817 .03
1.2828.00
1.2795.00
1.2840.00
1.2820.00

College of Marin - New Miwok Center
Jonas Center (COM)
McPhail's
Starbucks Redwood
Bahia Heights

42
96
95
90

1

0
1

3
'15

1

District Proiects Status Report - Const. Dept. (Julv)

Job No. Proiect % Complete % This month

1.6112.24
2.6263.20
1.7150.00
1.7183.00
2.7123.27

Lynwood Pump Station MCC
Replace PRE Tank 4A
San Mateo Tank lnleUOutlet
Replace Plastic 4-inch -Scown Lane
PB Replacements - Caltrans (WM Highway 1)

16
45
20
75
75

0
5
0

45
25

Emplovee Hours to Date. FY 19/20

As of Pay Period Ending July 31 ,2020
Percent of FiscalYear Passed = Bo/o

6. Safety/LiabiliW

FY 21 through July
FY 20 through July

\\nmwdserver1\ad ministrat ion\AC\EXC EL\ Personnel\wc\WC.X LS

lndustrial lnjury with Lost Time
Liability Claims

Paid

Lost Days
OH Cost of
Lost Days

($)

No. of
Emp.

lnwlrcd

No. of
lncidents

lncurred
(FYTD)

Paid
(FYTD)

($)

11

0

$4,840
$0

1

0

1

0

0

0
$

$

0

0

Days without a lost time accident through July 31 ,2020 38 Days

7. Enerqy Cost
July Fiæal Year-to-Date thru JulY

FYE kwh ø/kwh Cost/Day kwh ø/kwh Cost/Day

Pumping 167,936 25.8ø $1,497 167,936 25 8ø, $1,497
45,392 r Z0.Sçother* 45,392 Y ZO.Sç $462 $462

269,229 ' ZZ.oø, 62,470

2020 Staftord TP

Pumping
OtheÈ

2019 Stafford TP

Pumping
OtheÈ

74,698
160,236

54,252

21.eç,

23.1ø,

27.6ç,

$527
$1,236

$499

74,698
160,236

54,252

21.eÉ

23.1É

27.6ø

$527
$1,236

$49e
289,186 23.7ø $2,262 289,186 23.7ø, 92,262

80,606
182,367

52,067

1e.7ø,

20.4ø

26.1ø

1e.7É,

20.4ø

26.1ç

$530
$1,028

s420

80,606
182,367

52,067

$51 3

$1 ,1 62

9424
315,040

*Other includes West Marin Facilities

$1,978 315,040 21 .2ø, $2,099

Developer
Proiects Actual Budget

% YTD
Budget

District
Proiects Actual Budqet

% YTD
Budget

Construction 30 1,400 2% W$ Construction 561 3,460 16%

Enqineerinq 147 1,504 10% ffi Enqineerinq 237 2,722 9o/o

t:\gm\progress reporl\current progress report july 2020.doc

21.2(,

T:\AC\Board Reports\PGE\PG&E Usage\FY 20 2 1[ PGE Usago 07.2020xlsx.xlsx]mo rpt

2



8. Water Conservation Update

9. Utilitv Performance Metric

36 - Disruptions due to thin wall at Scown Lane and Hanson Court
8 - Disruptions due to leak at Carmen Court

3

Month of
July 2020

Fiscal Year to
Date

Program Total
to Date

Hiqh Efficiencv Toilet (HET) Rebates 6 6 4,172

Retrof it Certificates Filed 20 20 6,426

Cash for Grass Rebates Paid Out I 1 932

Washi Machine Rebates J 3 6,807

Water Smart Home Survey 0 0 3,899

CE
No. of Customers I

July 2020 July 2019 Fiscal Year to
Date 2020

Fiscal Year to
Date 2020

PLANNED

Duration Between 0.5 and 4 hours 32 2 32 2

Duration Between 4 and 12 hours 96 96

Duration Greater than 12 hours
UNPLANNED
Duration Between 0.5 and 4 hours 23 3 23 3

Duration Between 4 and 12 hours
Duration Greater than 12 hours

SERVICE LINES REPLACED
Polvbutvlene 10 5 10 5

Cooper (Reolaced or Repaired) 0 0 0 0

t:\gm\progress report\current progress report july 2020.doc



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

Summary of Complaints & Service Orders July 2020

Jul-21
8t12t2020

Jul-20 Action Taken July 2020

Consumers' System Problen
Service Line Leaks
House Plumbing
Noisy Plumbing
House Valve / Meter Off
Nothing Found
Low Pressure
High Pressure

Total

Service Repair Reports
Meter Replacement
Box and Lids
Water Off/On Due To Repairs
Misc. Field lnvestigation

Total

Leak NMWD Facilities
Main-Leak
Mains-Nothing Found
Service- Leak
Services-Nothing Found
Fire Hydrant-Leak
Fire Hydrants-Nothing Found
Fire Hydrants-Damaged
Meter Leak
Washer Leaks

Total

Hiqh Bill Complaints
Consumer Leaks
Meter Testing
Meter Misread
Nothing Found
Excessive lrrigation

Total

Low Bill Reports
Total

Water Qualitv Com plaints
Taste and Odor

Total

J'

0
1

b
10

0
1

47
1

1

11

21

2

Notified Consumer
Notified Consumer
Notified Consumer
Notified Consumer
Notified Consumer

PRVfailed @ 130 PSl. Advised to call plumber

Replaced
Replaced
Notified Consumer
Notified Consumer

Repaired
Notified Consumer
Repaired
Notified Consumer
Repaired
Notified Consumer

Repaired
Repaired

55 86

2
0
q

0

1

o
5

0

22 21

J

2
I
0
4
I
0
I
I

0
0
o

1

2
0
2
0
0

23 31

0

1

1

5

0

I
0

0
1

1

0

2

0

Notífied
Notified
Notified
Notified

Consumer
Consumer
Consumer
Consumer

73

U

20

147

c-1

TOTAL FOR MONTH: 103 -30%



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

Summary of Complaints & Service Orders Julv 2020

Type Jul-21 Jul-20 Action Taken July 2020
8t12t2020

Fiscal YTD Summarv
Consumer's System Problems
Service Repair Report
Leak NMWD Facilities
High Bill Complaints
Low Bills
Water Quality Complaints
Total
"ln House" Generated and
Completed Work Orders

Check Meter: possible
consumer/District leak, high
bill, flooded, need read, etc.

Change Meter: leaks,
hard to read

Repai r Meter: registers,
shut offs

Replace Boxes/Lids
Hvdrant Leaks
Dig Outs

Bill Adjustments Under Board Policy:

Julv 20 vs. Julv 19

55
22
23

J

0

0

Õo

21

3'l
7
0

2

Chanqe Primarilv Due To
-36% Decrease ln Nothing Found.

57o lncrease ln Box and Lids

-26% Decrease ln Main/Servìce Leaks.

-57o/o Decrease ln Nothing Found.

0% No Change
-100To Decrease in Taste and Odor.re_

t:\cons srvc\conrplaiol report\lcoÌ]pìain ?l.xlsxljuly20

103 147

298

13

38

2

az

0

0

4

0

0

1

2

J u l-20
Jul-19

12

11

45

11

34

315

$9,625
$2,725

$9,625
$2,725

Fiscal Year vs Prior FY

20t21 FY
19120 FY

/-1



MEMORANDUM

To: Board of Directors August 14,2020

From: Julie Blue, Auditor-Co ntrotterob
Nancy Holton, Accounting Supervisor

Subj: Auditor-Controller's Monthly Report of lnvestments for July 2020
t:\ac\word\investU 1 \¡nvsstment report 0720. doc

RECOMMENDED AGTION: lnformation

FINANCIAL IMPAGT: None

At month end the District's lnvestment Portfolio had an amortized costvalue (i.e., cash balance)

of $21 ,251,497 and a market value of $21 ,322,399. During July the cash balance decreased by

$908,276. The market value of securities held increased $70,902 during the month. The ratio of total

cash to budgeted annual operating expense stood at119o/o, down 9% from the prior month.

At July 31, 2020, 64% of the District's Portfolio was invested in California's Local Agency

lnvestment Fund (LAIF),24o/o in Time Certificates of Deposit, 5% in US Treasury Notes, 5% in the

Marin County Treasury, and 2o/o retained locally for operating purposes. The weighted average maturity

of the poÉfolio was 87 days, compared to 92 days at the end of June. The LAIF interest rate for the

month was 0.92%, compared to 1.22o/o the previous month. The weighted average Portfolio rate was

1.36o/o, compared to 1.53o/o the previous month.

lnvestment Transactions for the month of July are listed below:

7t8t2020
7t22t2020
7t23t2020 I.AIF

LAIF
US Bank

US Bank
ùS Èänt

Trsf to LAIF account000LAIF

$500,000.00 Trsf from LAIF account

$900,000.00 Trsf from LAIF account



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
AUDITOR.CONTROLLER'S MONTHLY REPORT OF INVESTMENTS

July 31 ,2020
S&P Purchase Maturity Cost 713112020

Tvpe Description Rating Date Date

AA- Various OPen
Basis' Market Value

$13,609,318 $13,676,178

%o'f
Yieldz Portfolio-\ffi' 64%LAIF State of CA Treasury

Time
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD

8t15118
9t28t18
11t14118
12t17 t18
1t11119
1t25t19
2t8t19

3t15119
4t18119
5t23119
1t18t19
8t21t19
9t6119

10111119
11t15119
12t9119
1t16t20
3t6t20
417120

4t17120
5t7 t20

8t17t20
9t28120
11t16120
12117120
1t11121
1t25t21
2t8121

3t15t21
4t19t21
5t24t21
7 t19t21
8t23121

9t7 t21
10t12t21
11115121

1219121

1t18t22
3t7t22
4t7t22
4t18t22
5t9t22

246,000
246,000
246,000
246,000
249,000
246,000
249,000
249,000
249,000
247,O00
246,000
247,O00
247,000
247,000
247,O00
247,O00
247,000
248,000
248,000
248,O00
248,000

246,000
246,000
246,000
246,000
249,000
246,000
249,000
249,000
249,000
247,OOO

246,000
247,000
247,000
247,000
247,000
247,000
247,000
248,000
248,000
248,O00

Ce¡Tificate of Deposit
Bank of America
Ally Bank
Barclays Bank
CIT Bank
Reliance Bank
lberia Bank
Merrick Bank
Eaglebank
Central Bank
Morgan Stanley Private Bank
TIAA Bank
Capital One Bank NA
Capital One Bank USA
Goldman Sachs Bank USA
Flagstar Bank
Synovus Bank
Morgan Stanley Bank
Wells Fargo National Bank
American Express Natl Bank
Synchrony Bank
Pinnacle Bank

2.75o/o 1%

2.80o/o 1%

3.00% 1%

3.00% 1o/o

2.70% 1Yo

2.70% 1%

2.60To 1%

2.600/o 1%

2.40% 1%

240% 1%o

2.75% 1Yo

1.85o/o 1%

1.75o/o 1%

1.70Yo 1%

175% 1o/o

1.65% 1Yo

1.75Yo 1%

1.35% 1Yo

1.35% 1o/o

1.20% 1o/o

0.90% 1%-zIM ---ZM

nla
nla
nla
nla
nla
nla
nla
nla
nla
nla
nla
nla
nla
nla
nla
nla
nla
nla
nla
nla
nla

US Treasury Notes
Treas 2.750o/o

Other
Agency Marin Co Treasury
Other Various

nla 315119 9l3ol20

AAA Various Open
nla Various Open

TOTAL IN PORTFOLIO

1,000,355 1,004,398
@

2.76%
2.75% 5%

5To

$1 ,045,'101 $',l ,045,101
403 721 403 721

2.22%
0.41Yo-7W

5To

L/O-- -1dM

Weighted Average Maturity = 87 Davs

LAIF: State of Californ¡a Local Agency lnvestment Fund.

TCD: Tìme Certificate of Depos¡t, Treas: US Treasury Notes with maturity of 5 years or less

Agency: STP State Revolving Fund Loan Reserve.
Other: Comprised of 5 accounts used for operating purposes. US Bank Operating Account, US Bank STP SRF Loan

Account, US Bank FSA Payments Account, Bank of Marin AEEP Checking Account & NMWD Petty Cash Fund.

I Original cost less repayment of princ¡pal and amortization of premium or discount.

2 Yield defined to be annualized ¡nterest earn¡ngs to maturity as a percentage of invested funds.

3 Earnings are caìculated daìly - this represents the average yield for the month ending July 31 , 2020.

Loan Maturity

Date Date
Original

Loan Amount
Principal

Outstandinq

I nterest
Ratelnterest Bearing Loans

Marin Country Club Loan 111118 1111147

Employee Hous¡ng Loans (2) Various Various
TOT A L'NTERES T B EA R I N G LOAAIS

The District has the ability to meet the next six months of cash flow requirements

$'1,265,295 $1,167,544
525 000

1.00%
Contingent

^')

\\nmwdseruerl\adminisIation\accountanls\inveslrnentsul\10720.x|sìmo rpt





ftem #6

NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FISCAL YEAR 2019.20

June 30, 2020

Preliminary
81121202010.58



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Memo
Financial Statement Memo

B asi c F i n an ci a I Slafemenfs

Statement of Net Position - All Districts

Sources and Uses of Funds Statement.

lncome Statement & Cash Flow - By Service Area...

S u pp le m e ntary I nform ation

Detail lncome Statement - Novato Water

Detail lncome Statement - Recycled Water

Detail lncome Statement - West Marin Water

Detail lncome Statement - Oceana Marin Sewer

Equipment Expenditures

Expenditures by Category

Vehicle Fleet Analysis

Water Conservation Expenditures

Capital lmprovement Project Expenditures

Notes to Financial Statements

1

4

B

I

10

14

16

'19

21

22

23

24

25

28

admin> i:\acct\finânce\stmtfyxx\f nfyus.xls



MEMORANDUM

To: Drew Mclntyre, General Manager August 14,2020

From: Reviewed by: Julie Blue, Auditor-Controller

Prepared by: Nancy Holton, Accounting Supervisor and Nancy Williamson, Senior Accountant

Subj: lnformation - FY19/20 June Financial Statement
t:\accountants\f¡nanciâls\stir{fy20\md&a062O.doc

FISCAL YEAR PERFORMANCE COMPARED TO THE ANNUAL BUDGET

CONSOLIDATED SUMMARY
Actual vs. Budget
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Non-Operating Revenue / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)
Other Sources / (Uses)*

Cash lncrease / (Decrease)

See Page B.

NOVATO WATER
Year over Year Comparison
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Consumption (MG)
Average Commodity Rate / 1,000 gal (net)

lncome / (Loss ) / Active Account
lncome / (Loss) / 1,000 Gal
Connection Fee Revenue
FRC Transfer (to)ifrom Recycled Water
Caltrans Capital Contribution'
MMWD AEEP Capital Contribution
Developer'ln-Kind' Contributions

Jun-20
Actual
$2,249,829

3,038,809
(54,18e)

FY19t20
ActualYTD

FY19/20
Budqet

$22,998,000
20,868,000

(300,000)

FYTD /
Budqet %

97%
103o/o

96%
33%($843, I 70)

645,837

$22,360,374
21,469,489

001

$602,884
2,701,173

$1,830,000
4,151 ,000)

$1 97 333 $3,304,057 ($2,321,000)

For the fiscal year 2019-2020, the District generated a net income of $602,884 and saw a net cash
increase of $3,304,057. Operating Revenue came in 3% under budget and Operating Expense came
in 3o/o over budget. $3, 1 34,715 (56%) of the Capital lmprovement Projects Budget was expended this
fiscal year. At month end the ratio of total cash to budgeted annual operating expense (sans
depreciation) stood at 12Ùo/o.

SUMMARY INCOME STATEMENTS BY SERVICE AREA
PRESENTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPALS

Jun-20
Actual
$1,968,163
2,859,720

(50,369)

_____1$911,e?4-
20,554

256
$6.03

($45 83)
($3 68)

$28,600
($e6' 1 53)

$2,031
$o

946,147

FYl9/20
ActualYTD

$19,784,381
19,494,213

(25,516)
$264,652:

20,554
2,502
$5.88

$12.88
$0 11

$1,s31,535
$689,600

$20,510
$205,320
$864,540

FYl s/í9
Actual YTD
$19,437,324

'17,799,856

(78,175)

____i1É!9¿99_
20,546
2,416
$6.01

$75.89
$0.65

$1,484,380
$1,239,907

$24,787
$245,000
$384,351

FY20 vs 19
Up/(Down)

2%
10%

(67%)
(83%)

(0o/o)

4%
(2%)
(83%)
(84%)

3%
(44o/o)

(17%)
(16%)
125%

Consumption for the fiscal year was 4o/o more than the prior year. Total operating revenue, which
includes wheeling and other miscellaneous service charges, increased 2% ($347,056) from the prior
year. Total operating expense was $1,694,357 more than last year.

1



Memo - June Financial Statement
August '14, 2020
Page 2 of 3

The Stafford Treatment Plant produced 68O MG this fiscal year at a cost of $3,338iMG1 versus

$2,87711\AG3 from SCWA. The budget for Stafford is 650 MG at a cost of $3,522lMG.

Staff time (hours) charged to Novato operations was 17o more than last year. Salary and benefit cost
was $5,984,623, which was 92o/o of the $6,514,000 budget for Novato operations.

The fiscal year net income (which includes non-operating items such as interest revenue and expense)
of $264,652 compares to a budgeted net income for the year of $902,000 and to a net income of

$1,559,293 for the prior year. $1,947,104 (46%) of the Novato Water Capital lmprovement Project
Budget was spent versus $3,328,681 (58%) for the prior year. $1,531,535 in connection fees have
been collected ($340,000 is budgeted). Connection Fee reserves totaling $689,600 were transferred
this fiscal year from the Recycled Water Fund to the Novato Water Fund. The Novato Connection Fee

Reserve has a net deficit of $6,599,639 arising from transfers to the RW Fund in advance of
Connection Fee receipts. This is down from a net deficit of $7,659,100 last year. That deficit will be
reimbursed by future Connection Fee revenue. The Novato cash balance increased $377,565 in June,
and stood at $16,246,782 at month end, compared to a budgeted projection of $5,892,000 at fiscal
year-end.

NOVATO RECYCLED
Year over Year Comparison
Operating Rer'enue
Operating Epense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Actiræ Accounts
Consumption (MG)

Average Commodity Rate / 1,000 gal (net)

Deer lsland Production (MG)

Novato Sanitary Production (MG)

Las Gallinas Production (MG)

Potable Water lnput (MG)

Jun-20
Actual

$166,676
129,297
(14,026)

FY19l20
Actual YTD

91,298,327
1,022,728

441.481)j

FY18/19
Actual YTD

$1 ,183,419
1,087,361
(19e,444)

FY20 vs 19

Up/(Down)
10o/o

(6%)
121o/o

60o/o

Oo/o

7o/o

3%

61%
11%
630/0

(16%)

$23,353 $165,882) ($103,386)

91

56.5

$2.88
0.0

34.7
3.7
4.0

91

206.1

$5.97
6.4

176.0
47.0
16.7

91

192.0

$5.82
4.0

1 58.1

28.8
20.0

206.1 MG was delivered to RW customers this fiscal year, 7o/o tYtorê than the prior year. Operating
revenue was 10%o more than last year. Total operating expense was 6% less than the prior year. The
recycled wate¡'was produced at a cost of $1,971211V|'G2 (including potable water consumed) versus
92,877lMG'from SCWA. The budgeted production cost of recycled water is $2,41O/MG.

The fiscal year net loss of $165,882 compares to a budgeted net income for the year of $54,000 and a
net loss of $103,386 for the prior year. $6,584 (5%) of the Capital lmprovement Project Budget has
been expended this fiscal year.

The Novato Recycled cash balance stood at $4,458,430 at month end, $4.1M of which amount resides
in restricted reserves for debt service, the Deer lsland Facility Replacement Fund and the Recycled
Water Capital Replacement and Expansion Fund.

l Staffordproductioncost=TPopexpense($1,507,541)+SRFloan¡nterest($215,953) +plantdepreciation($566,131)/686MGproduced
2 Recycled Water production cost = purchased water cost ($317,962) + treatment expense ($3,627) + Deer lsland RW Facility SRF loan
interest ($47,243) ¡' Deer lsland plant depreciation ($1 15,919) 1246 MG produced
3 SCWA production cost per MG = O&M charge ($2,361) + debt service charge ($177) + Russian River conservation charge ($313) + Russian
River projects charge ($26)

2



Memo - June Financial Statement
August 14, 2020
Page 3 of 3

WEST MARIN WATER
Year over Year Compar¡son
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Consumption (MG)
Average Commodity Rate / 1,000 gal (net)
lncome/ (Loss) i Active Account
lncome / (Loss) / 1,000 Gal
Connection Fee Revenue

6 158
s32,217 $391,866 $246,472::: 782 782 783

Jun-20
Actual

$93,228
67,1 69

FY19t20
ActualYTD

$1,0'13,294
730,429
'109,001

FY18/19
ActualYTD

FY20 vs 19

Up/(Down)
13%
(2%)
22%
59%
(0%)
B%
7%

5S%

47%
(1oo%)

$898,784
741,819

89,507

12.4

$6.1 5

$41.20
$2.61

$o

aa r)
I L.J

$1'1.26
$501 11

$5.42
$o

66.8
$10.57

$314.78
$3.69

$8,000

Consumption for the fiscal year was 87o more than the prior year. Operating revenue of $1 ,013,294 was
13o/o more than prior year.

Operating expenditures were $11,390, or 2o/o less than the previous year. The fiscal year net income of
$391,866 compares to a budgeted annual net income of $209,000 and to a net income of $246,472for
the prior year. $1 ,023,482 (83%) of the Capital lmprovement Project Budget was expended this fiscal
year{o-date, and no connection fees were collected ($0 is budgeted). The West Marin Water cash
balance decreased $387,650 in June and stood at $1,193,691 at month end, compared to a budgeted
projection of $754,000 at June 30,2020.

OCEANA MARIN SEWER
Year over Year Comparison
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Monthly Sewer Service Charge
lncome / (Loss) / Active Account
Connection Fee Revenue

Jun-20
Actual

s21,762
16,235
4,048

FY19t20
Actual YTD

FY18/19
Actual YTD

FY20 vs 19
Up/(Down)

SYo

15o/o

10o/o

(e%)

0o/o

3o/o

$9,575

$264,372
222,119

69 ooÃ

112 248
235
$e3

ç477.65
$o

$252,720
193.263
63 369

$122,826
235
$e3

$40.75
$0

234
$90

$524.90
$o

Operating revenue of $264,372 was 5% more than the prev¡ous year due to the 3.5% rate increase
effective July 1,2019 and addition of one new customer mid-year. Operating expenditures were 157o

$28,856 more than the previous year. The fiscal year{o-date net income of $112,248 compares to a
budgeted annual net income of $92,000 and to a net Income of $122,826 for the prior year. 286% of the
Capital lmprovement Project Budget has been expended this fiscal year-to-date.

No connection fees have been collected ($O ¡s budgeted). The Oceana Marin cash balance decreased
$5,653 in June and stood at $310,216 at month end, compared to a budgeted projection of $384,000 at
June 30, 2020.

3



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30,2O2O

ASSETS
Cash & lnvestments
U nrestricted/Undesignated Cash
Restricted Cash lNote t¡
Connection Fee Fund
Bank of Marin Project Fund
AMI Project Loan Fund
Deer lsland RWF Replacement Fund
Capital Replacement & Expansion Fund
Tax Receipts Held in Marin Co Treasury
STP SRF Reserve-Marin Co Treasury
RWS North/South SRF Reserve Fund
RW CentralArea SRF Reserve Fund
Designated Cash 1ruote z¡

Liability Contingency Fund
Workers' Compensation Fund
Retiree Medical Benefits Fund
Maintenance Accrual Fund
Operating Reserve Fund

Accrued Water Saies
Accou nts Receivable-Other
Prepaid Expense
Reimbursable Small Jobs
lnterest Receivable
lnventories
Deposits Receivable

NOVATO
WATER

$915,485

NOVATO
RECYCLED

$109,819

0

0

0

1,721,062
1,561,481

0

0

614,299
275,773

'7 o07

0

0

168,000
$4,458,430

0

$'153,895
t//,to0
37,271

0

0

3,902
0

0

$372,236

WEST MARIN
WATER

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWERTOTAL

$1,963,497

0
213,823

0
1,721,062
1,561,481

627
1,044,474

614,299
275,773

$1,430,370
525,917

4,520,164
2,500,000
5,795,000

$700,896 $237,297

0
40 0ÃÃ,

0
Û

0
0

1,044,474
0
0

0

0
U

0
0

55
0

0

0

0

193,868
0

0
n

72
0
U

0

q

$1,331,485
495,586

4,520,164
2, s00,000
5,377,000

$9B,BB5
16,470

0
0

183,000
$1 ,193,691

0

$90,864
109,663

0

0

752
0

0

0

$0
5,864

0
0

67,000

$1,306
0

68,555
1,049

0

0

0

0

$0

-È

Total Cash $22,166,486 616,204,149
76,245 76,245Gain/(Loss) on MV of lnvestments

Market Value of Cash & lnvestments $22,242,731 $16,280,394

Current Assets
Net Receivables - nsumers $1,349,932

1,788,637
443,439
341,866

80,1 1 6
101 ,064
628,948

23,274
Total Current Assets $4,757,276 4,112,851

$4,458,430 $1 193,691 $310,216

$310,216
0

$1,103,867
1,501,806

337,613
340,817
79,364
97.163

628,948
23,274

$20 ,280 $70,909

l\accou¡ianis\iinancials\stmiíyu\f¡nfyu.xlsgl 12l2A2O 1 i.O8 A,lttl



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30, 2O2O

Loans Receivable
Employee Loans (Note 3)

Other Long Term Receivables 1ruote +¡

Loans Receivable

Property and Plant
Land & Land Rights
Dam, Lake, & Source Facilities
Treatment Facilities
Storage Facilities
Transmission Facilities (1 6"+¡
Distribution and Pumping Facilities
Sewer Mains, Pumps, & Laterals

Sub-Total
Less Accumulated Depreciation (Note 5)

Net Property and Plant

Buildinqs and Equipment (tlote 6)

Buildings
Office Equipment
Laboratory Equipment
Trucks & Automobiles
Construction Equipment
Tools, Shop Equipment
Sub-Total
Less Accumulated Depreciation (ttote s¡

Net Buildings and EquiPment

TOTAL

$525,385
1 136 458

$1,661,843

$1,473,091
5,675,845

22,604,626
24,593,098
29,405,627

106,970,601
1,258,111

$'191,980,999
(59.855,226)

$2,1 19,365
840,251
252,324

1,243,730
974,660
220 890

$5,651,219
(4,334,436)

$1,316,783

8132,125,773 94,490,589

NOVATO
WATER

$525,385
0

525,385

$1,368,872
5,183,433

18,625,907
20,844,117
29,283,304
69,606,211

0

$144,911,843
(50,421,254)

$2,1 19,365
840,251
252,324

1,243,730
974,660
220,890

5,651,219
(4,334,436)

'1 ,316,783

$2,881,587
98,688,959
z,o to,J t/

NOVATO
RECYCLED

WEST MARIN
WATER

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

s0
136 458

$1,136,458

$0
0

2,666,198
1,643,458

0
3'1,455,961

0

$35,765,617
(4,230,033)

$103,411
492,412
454,159

2,105,523
122,324

5,908,429
0

$9,186,257
Ø.112.374\

$0

$808
0

92J17,282
(1,091,56s)

$0

1

$0
0

s0
0

$0

628,385

$31,535,583 $5,073,883 61,025,717

0

0

0

11

$0
0

0

0

0

0

$0
0

0

0

0

0

$o
0
0
0

0

0

1 ,4Ê,

(Jr

arl

0 0 0

Construction ln Proqress
Developer
District

Total Construction in Progness
Net Utility Piant

Deferred Outflow of Resources-GAS868
Deferred Outflow of Resources-GASB75

TOTAL ASSETS

$1,450,652 $1,4s0,652
3,518 aa2 430 934

s0 $0 $0

$0 $o
470 660 244 528

$470,660 $1,372,760 9244,528
32,006,244 6,446,643 1.270,245

000
000

$0
1,372,760

$4,969,535
138,412,091

2,616,317
172.404

$r69,862,661
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JUNE 3A,2O2A

NOVATO
WATER

NOVATO
RECYCLED

WEST MARIN
WATER

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities
Trade Accounts
Reimbursement Prog. Unclaimed Funds
Loan Debt Principal Payable-Current
Bank of Marin Principal Payable-Current
JP Morgan/Chase AMI Loan-Current
Accrued lnterest Payable-SRF Loan
JP Morgan/Chase AMI Loan lnterest Payable
Deposits/Performance Bonds
Unemployment lnsurance Reserve (Note 8)

Workers' Comp Future Claims Payable
Payroll Benefits (Note 9)

Deferred Revenue

JP Morgan/Chase AMI Loan Payable
STP Rehab SRF Loan
RWF SRF Loan
RWS North/South Expansion SRF Loan

RWS Central Expansion SRF Loan
Bank of Marin Loan
Net Pension Liability @ 6/30/19
Total OPEB Liability (Note 2)

Total Long Term Liabilities
Deferred lnflow of Resources-GASE 68
Deferred lnflow of Resources-GASE 75

TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL

$2,868,544
75,750

1,315,842
381,461
270,000
120,851
36,763

369,1 61

23,400
23,537

957,301
292,229

4 520 164

$48,016,420
540,356

0

$2,805,9'13
64,650

421,701
332,634
270,000

0

36,763
337,661
23,400
21,772

881,781

$44,658
n

894,141

$1,088,985

$0
$0

$14,308,277
0

0

$ 1 5,397,263

917,974
11,100

U

48,827
0

0

0

28,500

800
34,236

5,618

120

0
n

,851
U

0

0

659
28,194

483

$0
0

0

0

0

0

0

3,000
0

306
13,090

0

Total Current Liabilíties $6,734,839
Restricted Liabil ities
Construction Advances

Total Restricted Liabilities
Long Term Liablilities (Note 7)

ÞcJ/ 004

,004

286 129
5,482,404

$535,504
535,504

$3,830,000
7 ,991,354

0

0

0

4,191,237
12,560,160
4 520 164

33,092,915
540,356

0

$147,054

$1,500--1Fdõ-

$ 1 6,396

$0
o)

$3,830,000
7,991,354
1,510,788
6,300,388
6,497,101
4,806,464

12,560,160

$0
0

1 510,788
6,300,388
6,497,101

0
0

0

$0

$0

$0
0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

615.227
0

0

$o9615,227
0 0

0

$55,828,620 39,65'1 ,179 s/þJ
0

782 $ 1 6,396
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE PER¡OD ENDING JUNE 30,2O2O

Net Assets

Contributions in Aid of Construction
Grants in Aid of Construction
Connection Fees

Total lnvestment
Restricted Reserves
Connection Fee Fund
Bank of Marin Project Fund
Deer lsland RWF Replacement Fund
Capital Replacement & Expânsion Fund
RWS NorthiSouth SRF Reserve Fund
RW CentralArea SRF Reserve Fund
Designated Reserves
Liability Contingency Fund
Maintenance Accrual Fund
Workers' Compensation Fund
Retiree Medical Benefits Fund
Operating Reserve Fund
Earned Surplus - Prior Yrs
Net lncomei(Loss)
Transfer (To)/From Reserves (see below)

Total Restricted & Designated
TOTAL NET POSITION

Transfer (To)/From Reserves
Connection Fee
AMI Project Fund
Liability Reserve
Capital Replacement & Expansion Fund
Maintenance Reserve
RWF Replacement Fund
Retiree Medical lnsurance Fund
(Gain)/Loss WC Fund
Bank of Marìn Project Fund
Operating Reserve Fund

Total Transfer

TOTAL ¡-IABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCE

40 210 672
139,121,866 105,533,095

TOTAL

$85,695,655
13,215,539

($6,874,317)
213,823

1,721,062
1,561,481

614,299
275,773

NOVATO
WATER

$77,067,424
426,448

28,039.223

($6,599,639)
19,955

0
0
0
0

1,331,485
2,500,000

473,813
2,759,513
5,377,000

(28,818,735)
264,652
(e6,009)

(22,787,965)
82,745,130

NOVATO
RECYCLED

WEST MARIN
WATER

$2,138,348
2,827,187
1,546,546

98,885
0

'15,670
n

183,000
(479,320)
391,866
238,449------55658T-

$7,077,832

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

67,000
289,896
112,248
(13,177)

$263,5 1 4
$'1 634,975

$5,810,128
9,961,904

o?a 197
5,705,229

$o
0

1,721,062
1,561,481

614,299
275,773

168,000
(6,746,206)

(165,882)
(564,988)

($3,12e,123)
$22,576,1A5

$679,755
0

69'1 706
$6,512,081 $1,371,461

($76,667)
193,868

n

U

U

U

'198,01($ 1)

0
0
0
0
0

0
0

5,558
0

1,430,370
2,500,000

502,379
2,759,513
5,795,000

(35,754,365)
602,884
(435,725)

U

0
7,338

0
--l

$25,487,824)
8114,034,042

($13,037)
0

(18s,200)
(363,001)

0
(1e4,7e6)

0
(18,447)
250,756
92,000

($435,r2Ð

$0 ($2 053)
0
0

0

0

0

0
(s5e)

244,061
t3 000)104 000

($96,009) ($564,988) 9238,449 ($13,177)

$122,396,309 $37,973,368 $7,841,613 $1,651 ,371

$0
0

200)

o0,1($ 84
0

0

0

0

0

0
q?

0

0
(189

0

0
0

0
(17,504)

6,695

(363 001)
0

(1 94 796)
0

(1s1)
0

(7 000) (2,000)

$169,862,661
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS STATEMENT - ALL SERVICE AREAS COMBINED

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30, 2O2O

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

YTD/
Budget %

Prior YTD
Actual

OPERATING REVENUE
Water Sales
Bimonthly Service Charge
Sewer Service Charge
Wheeling & Misc Service Charges

TOTAL OPERATING REVENU E

OPERATI NG EXPENDITURES
Source of Supply
Pumping
Operations
Water Treatment
Sewer Service
Transmission & Distribution
Consumer Accounting
Water Conservation
General & Administrative
Depreciation

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES

NET OPERATTNG TNCOME (LOSS)

NON-OPERATING REVENUE(EXPENSE)
Tax Proceeds
lnterest Revenue
Miscellaneous Revenue
Bond & Loan lnterest Expense
Miscellaneous Expense
Capital Constribution Expense-NSD & LGVSD

TOTAL NON-OP REVENUE(EXPENSE)

NET TNCOME(LOSS)

oTHER SOURCES(USES) OF FUNDS
Add Depreciation Expense
Connection Fees
Loan Proceeds
Grant Proceeds
Marin County Club Loan Principal Pmts
Caltrans AEEP Capital Contribution
StoneTree RWF Loan Principal
MMWD AEEP Capital Contribution
Capital Equipment Expenditures
Capital I mprovement Projects
Bond & Loan Principal Payments
Change in Working Capital

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES(USES)

$22360,374 $22,998,000

$7,085,260
626,1 1 I

1,028,902
2,387,006

134,401
3,095,301

476,597
36'1,691

2,907.997
3,366,216

$6,186,000
438,000
808,000

2,697,000
171 ,000

3,656,000
644,000
399,000

2,383,000
3,486,000

95,492,324
458,594
993,209

2, 1 3'1 ,1 66
127,167

3,301,629
510,34'l
349,416

3,007,301
3,451,154

$19,822,299

$1,949,948

$16,757,621
4,968,620

264,372
369,761

$'17,387,000
4,958,000

261,000
392,000

$16,337,17'1
4,810,297

252,720
372,059

-T¿T,T7TZ47

$1 13,753
426,850
218,525

(875,354)
(8,516)

0
($124,742)

-s1,825-,206-:

96%
100%
1O1o/o

94%
97%

115%
143%
127%
8S%
79%
85%
74%
91%
122%
97%
103%$21,469,489

$890,885

$20,868,000

$2,130,000

$1 15,025
532,128
170,618

(796,147)
(3,e13)

(305,711)

$1'16,000
277,OOO
133,000

(806,000)
(20,000)

0

42%

99%
192%
128%
99%
2oo/o

96%

33%

97%
450%

ooÂ

($288,001) ($300,000)

$602,884 $1,830,CI00

$3,366,216
1,531,535

0
0

36,901
20,510

1,081,103
205,320

(285,1 05)
(3,134,715)
(2,124,O83)
2,003,490

$2,701 ,173 ($4,151 ,000)

$3,451,154
1,492,380
1,773,836

20,191
448,209
24,787

221,514
245,000

(118,57e)
(3,870,982)
(1,871,005)

190,536
$2,007,040

$3,832,246

$3,486,000
340,000
69,000

0
0

1,000
227,OOO

205,000
(433,000)

(5,713,000)
(2,333,000)

0

2051%
4760/o

1O0o/o

660/0

55%
91%

$3,304,057 ($2,321,000)

B

cASH TNCREASE/(DECREASE)
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NORTH MAR¡N WATER DISTRICT
INCOME STATEMENT AND CASH FLOW BY SERVICE AREA

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30, 2O2O

SUMMARY INCOME STATEIT¡ENT

Operating Revenue

Operating Expense
OPERATING INCOME(LOSS)
Non-Operating Revenue/(Expense)

NET TNCOME(LOSS)

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Developer ln-Kind Contributions
Caltrans AEEP Capìtal Contributions
MMWD Capital Contribution
Connection Fees
FRC Transfer

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
CHANGE IN NET POSITION

Net Position June 30, 2019
Net Position June 30, 2020

NOVATO
WATER

NOVATO
RECYCLED

WEST MARIN
WATER

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWERTOTAL

360,374

21,469,489

$19,784 381

19.494.213

$1,298,327

1.022.728

$1,013,294

730,429

$264,372

222,119
$890,885
(288,001)

$290,1 67
(25,516)

$275,600
G41.481)

$282,865
109,001

$42,253
69 995

$602,884

$874,540
20,510

205,320
1,531,535

0

$864,540
20,510

205,320
1,531,535

689,600 (689.600)

$264,652 ($165,882) $391,866 5112,248

$ 0 $0
0

0
0
0

$o
0

0
0

0

000
0
0
0

$2,631,905
$3,234,789

I 10,864,836

$3,31 1,506

$3,576,157
79,230,648

($67s,600)
($84s,482)

23,421,988

$o

$3s'1,866
6,688,798

$o

$112,248
1,523,402

$1'14,099,626 $82,806,805 $22,576,506 $7,080,665 $1 635,6s0

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Net lncome/(Loss)
Add back Depreciation
Cash Generated From Operations

Other Sources (Uses) of Funds
Connection Fee Revenue
Capital Assets Acquisition
Caltrans AEEP Capital Contribution
MMWD AEEP Capital Contribution
Marin Country Club & Stone Tree Loan Principal Pmts

Principal Paid on Debt
Consumer Receivables Decr (lncr)
Construction Advances (Decr) lncr
Other Assets Decr (lncr)
Other Liabilities (Decr) lncr
Trade Accounts Payable (Decr) lncr
Connection Fee Transfer
Totat Other Sources (Uses)

Net Cash Provided (Used)

MV Cash & lnvestments June 30,2019
MV Cash & lnvestments June 30,2020

$602,884
3,366,216

-----$qe6eJoo
$1,531,535
(3,419,820)

20,510
205,320

1 ,1 18,004
(2,124,083)

(12,118)
(242,803)
956,078

(457,156)
1,759,490

0
($665,043)

$264,652
2,660,688

($165,882)
473,828

$391,866
185,652

$112,248
46,048

$2,925,340 $s07,947 $577,518 $158,295

$1,531,535
(2,232,209)

20,510
205,320

0
(1,409,575)

67,145
(234,303)
978,670

(257,578)
1,736,518

689 600
$1,095,634

$o
(1s7,544)

0
U

0
0

(42)
0

7

1,060
0

0
($156,520)

$0
(6,584)

0
0

1,1 18,004
(667,381)

(74,431)
(10,000)

(e53)
(206,746)

4,998
(68e,600)

($532,6e3)

$0
(1,023,482)

0
0
0

(47,127)
(4,791)
1,500

(21,647)
6,1 09

17,974
0

($1,071,464)

$3,304,057 $4,020,974 (9224,746\ ($493,s46) $1,776

$18 938,674 912,259,420 $4,683,176 $1,687,637 $s08,441
$22,242,731 $16,280 ,394 $4,458,430 $1,193,691 $310,216

I
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30, 2O2O

JUNE YEAR TO DATE

2O2O ACTUAL
YTD/

BUDGET%
PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

OPERATING REVENUE
Water Sales
BillAdjustments
Bimonthly Service Charges
Account Turn-on Charges
New Account Charges
Returned Check Charges
Hydrant Meter Up/Down Charges
Backflow Service Charges
Lab Service-Outside Clients
Wheeling Charges - MMWD

Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Source
MainUMonitoring of Dam
Maint of Lake & lntakes
Maint of Structures
Maint of Watershed
Water Quality Surveillance
Erosion Control
Ground Water Well Monitoring
Purchased Water
cAS868 Adjustment
GAS875 Adjustment (OPEB)

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
PUMPING
Maint of Structures & Grounds
Maint of Pumping Equipment
Electric Power
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
cASB75 Adjustment (OPEB)

OPERATIONS
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Operations
Maintenance Expense
Telemetry EquipmenUControls Maint
Leased Lines
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GAS875 Adjustment (OPEB)

1160/o

0%

$34,416
158,903
341,401

0
0

PUMPING $47,764 $534,720 140%

$1,587,608 $6,711,256 114% $5,167,409

$1 ,549,814 $14,772,318
(5e,788)

4,709,222
54,154

5,990
360

4,800
149,428

43,132
104,765

$19,784,381

$14,582,922
(72,061)

4,562,329
79,1 95

6,360
297

4,900
142,731
32,786
97.866

(6,070)
392,43s

0
465

o

600
13,147
4,827

'12,936

95o/o

74%
100%
69%
86%
360/o

96%
105o/o

131%
140%
96%

121%
59%
46%
7 lYo
Oo/o

44%
12%

108%
300%
119%

0Yo

TOTALOPERATING REVENUE $1,968,163

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
SOURCE OF SUPPLY

$636
320

0
315

0
435

0
0
0

1,s85,902
0
0

$13,274
8,289

30,5BB
14,240

0
19,627
1,642

62
0

6,623,534
0
0

$19,437,324

$7,564
8,623

33,686
24,172

205
4,446
1,669

0
367

5,082,987
3,278

412

$6,673
1,518

39,573
0
0

$56,801
41,304

285,772
4,681

591

$389,149

$16,794
34,605

8,662
4,864
1,388

0
0

$232,895
507,830

52,959
61,798
16,656

0
0

$215,732
306,774

38,570
84,979
16,678
43,018

5,424

147%
213o/o

93%
71o/o

98%
Oo/o

oPERATIONS $66,31 3 $872,138 127% fi711,175
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30, 2O2O

JUNE YEARTO DATE
2O2O ACTUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

WATER TREATMENT
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Water Treatment
Purification Chemicals
Sludge Drsposal
Maint of Structures & Grounds
Maint of Purification Equipment
Electric Power
Water Quality Programs
Laboratory Direct Labor
Lab Service-Outside Clients
Water Quality Supervision
Laboratory Supplies & Expense
Customer Waier Quality
Lab Cost Distributed
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GASB75 Adjustment (OPEB)

WATER TREATMENT
TRANSMISSION & D¡STRIBUTION
Supervision & Engineering
Maps & Records
Operation of T&D System
Facilities Location
Safety: Construction & Engineering
Customer Service Expense
Flushing
Storage Facilities Expense
Cathodic Protection
Maint of Valves/Regulators
Maint of Mains
Leak Detection - Mains
Backflow Prevention Program
Maint of Copper Services
Maint of PB Service Lines
Single Service lnstallations
Maint of Meters
Detector Check Assembly Maint
Maint of Hydrants
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GAS875 Adjustment (OPEB)

TRANSM¡SSION & DISTRIBUTION
CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
Meter Reading
Collection Expense - Labor
Collection Expense - Agency
Billing & Consumer Accounting
Contract Billing
Stationery, Supplies & Postage
Online Payment Processing Fees
Lock Box Service
U ncollectable Accounts
Office Equipment Expense
Distributed to West Marin (4.1%)

$434,167 $2,236,683 90% $1,945,958

$9,1 83
39,238

292,720
7,655

767
4,678

12,346
6,585

35,665
4,943
8,752

1 1 ,166
3,422

(2,954)
0
0

$170,261
284,929
503,664

93,987
93,901

200,107
160,692
107,549
404,859

46,974
89,662
67,128
38,770

(25,801)
0
0

119o/o

8B%
106%
76%
77%
105%
103o/o

106%
111%
102o/o

120o/o

84%
59%
103%
0%

102%
760/o

457%
110o/o

77o/o

116%
89%
81%
63%
71o/o

93Yo
B5%
77%
7 5o/o

92o/o

69o/o

88o/o

66%
0Yo

18%
57%
25o/o

117%
76%o

87%
107o/o

100%
167%
102%
111o/o

$1 56,1 76
228,878
376,960

88,352
53,090

162,714
122,831
1 09,1 39
341,949

40,794
79,834
58,387
46,358

(26,814)
95,295
12 016

$49,845
12,323
36,741
16,211
6,945

28,128
0

7,904
0

1,972
9,313
1,526

12,135
19,134
51,144
4,861
7,089
6,258
5,021

0
0

$600,516
121,544
310,804
164,579
46,003

321,269
48,060

101,710
1 1,319

135,586
158,205

10,249
170,089
105,350
443,334
26,039
96,608
73,643
48,301

0
0

$534,500
132,053
148,687
'180,263

53,484
270,902

55,039
98,222

8,810
87,285

167,959
12,042

231,822
117,773
55B,7BB
65,016

1 13,810
80,416
25,607

177,431
22,371

$276,547 $2,e93,206 87Yo 93,142,281

$972
0

193
16,547
2,515
9,080
8,495

912
(482)
675

(1,5e5)

$19,205
18,395

748
248,703

13,742
48,071
64,242
10,998
8,362

35,601
(17,814)

$69,881
27,444

2,224
210,805

15,484
51,267
55,709
10,944
14,994
12,677

(1 5, I 04)
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NOVATO WATER
DETA¡L INCQME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30,2O2O

JUNE

2020
YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL
YTD/

BUDGET%
PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GASB75 Adjustment (OPEB)

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING

WATER CONSERVATION
Residential
Commercial
Public Outreach/l nformation
Large Landscape
GAS86B Adjustment (Pension)
GASB7S Adjustment (OPEB)

TOTAL WATER CONSERVATION

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Directors Fees
Legal Fees
Human Resources
Auditing Fees
Consulting ServicesiStudies
General Office Salaries
Safety: General District Wide
Office Supplies
Employee Events
Other Administrative ExPense
Election Cost
Dues & Subscriptions
Vehicle Expense
Meetings, Conferences & Training
Recruitment Expense
Gas & Electricity
Telephone
Water
Buildings & Grounds Maint
Office Equipment Expense
lnsurance Premiums & Claims
Retiree Medical Benefits
(Gain)/Loss on Overhead Charges
G&A Applied to Other Operations (5.9%)
G&A Applied to Construction
GASB7S Adjustment (OPEB)
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE

Depreciatiolt (Note 5)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

0
0

$37,312 73%

$16,366
417

22,804
432

0
0

$40,019 $348,217 890/o

$198,881
6,481

125,537
17,317

0
U

$246,347
7,983

5'1,040
19,839
14,720

0
0

-s450252

o% 26,164
3,299

$485,786

78%
32%

285o/o
62%
o%

100%
87%
9B%
94o/o

72%
s6%
79%
72o/o

7B%
42%

BB%

101%
59%
71o/o

96%
89%
95o/o

135%
111%
7 5o/o

108%
277o/o

89%
120o/o

8551

$341,784

$5,768
3,045

12,334
0

8,235
101,198

3,736
2,318

60
357

0
865
676
902
500

3,561
623

0
20,013
23,256
10,320
14,522

(1 17,066)
(11,363)
(33,e22)

0
104.997

$40,873
18,278
50,727
19,651

140,301
'1 ,1 12,359

45,069
33,783

9,369
6,281

0

83,386
8,112

1 1 1,593
2,143

37,254
7,088
1,909

77 ,130
143,224
109,939
186,221

(331,882)
(130,5e2)
(3Be,B0e)

0

$36,815
20,853
95,476
22,731

304,645
1,043,436

40,468
31,761
10,664
7,289

18,915
79,986

8,112
107,583

1,201
32,251
4,518
1,989

58,884
109,014
99,040

197,855
905,405

(140,526)
(374,552)

15,707
124,583

$154,934

215,057

$2,859,720

1,294 648

$2,687,054

2,660,688

$19,494,2'r3

$2,864,101

2,752,212

$17,799,856

354%
120o/o

95%
103%

oPERATTNG TNCOME(LOSS) ($8e1,557) $2e0,167 17% ::_$rÉ92¡9L
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30, 2O2O

JUNE YEAR TO DATE

2O2O ACTUAL
YTD/

BUDGET%
PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

NON-OPERATING REVENUE
lnterest:
General Funds
Wohler Pipeline Financing Fund

Collector #6 Financing Fund
Retiree Medical lnsurance Fund

Workers'Comp Fund
Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Proj Fund

Funds Held in CountY Treasury
Total lnterest Revenue

Rents & Leases
Other Non-Operating Revenue
Gain/(Loss) on MV of lnvestments

NON-OPERATING REVENUE

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE
Bank of Marin AEEP Loan lnterest Exp

STP SRF Loan lnterest ExPense

JP Morgan/Chase AMI Loan lnterest Expense
Other Non-Operating ExPense

NON-OPERATING EXPENS

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY
NET TNCOME/(LOSS)
SCWA 84 Water Conservation Grant
Developer'l n-Kind' Contributions
Caltrans AEEP Capital Contribution
MMWD AEEP Capital Contribution
Connection Fees
FRC Transfer to/from Recycled Water

ENDING FUND EQUITY

($1o,B2o) $468,615 166% $450,913

$6,1 60
0
0

16,332
1,876

92
0

$41,834
0

0
217,499

25,407
1,279

17,799

55%
0%
o%

435%

593%
203o/o

98%
68%

100%
100o/o

9BYo

12%
96%

$3,317
3,098

12,181
178,704
2'1,836

1,253
'lB,0B5

$12,373
17,345

9,1 91

641

$24,460
4,006

152
(39,438)

$303,817
81,043
33,930
49,825

5238,474
86,'1 33
68,470
57 836

$74,21 1,063
1,559,293

20,191
384,351

24,787
245,000

1,484,380
1,239,907

NET INCOME(LOSS) ($e41,e27) $264,652 18%

$171,335
235,405
119,182

3,'166

-SEZs-,õa6_$1,559,293

2O51o/o

1O0o/o

450%
76%

$79,168,972

E $39,5s0

$ 160,988
215,953
114,881

2,309----T4%l3l-

$79,168,973
264,652

0

864,540
20,510

205,320
1 ,531,535

689,600
$82,745,1 30

(941,927)
0

46,147
2,031

0
28,600

(e6,153)
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NOVATO RECYCLED WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30,2O2O
JUNE YEAR TO DATE YTD/
2O2O ACTUAL BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

OPERATING REVENUE
Recycled Water Sales
Bimonthly Service Charges
Water Loads
Account Turn-on Charges

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENSE

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
Purchased Water - NSD
Purchased Water - LGVSD

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
PUMPING
Maint of Pumping Equipment
Electric Power

PUMPING
OPERATIONS
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Operations
Potable Water Consumed
Maintenance Expense
Telemetry EquipmenVControls Maint
cAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GASB7S Adjustment (OPEB)

WATER TREATMENT
Purification Chemicals
Maint of Purification Equipment
Electric Power
Laboratory Direct Labor
Customer Water Quality
Lab Expense Distributed from Novato
cAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
cASB75 Adjustment (OPEB)

WATER TREATMENT
TRANSMiSSION & DISTRIBUT¡ON
Supervision & Engineering
Facilities Location
Customer Service Expense
Storage Facilities Expense
Maint of Valves/Regulators
Maint of Mains
Maint of PB Service Lines
cAS86B Adjustment (Pension)
cASB75 Adjustment (OPEB)

TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION

$166,676 $1,298,327 105% $1,183,419

$45,456
32,915

$253,961 $238,029
97 6'13 62 428

$78,371 $351,575 $300,457

$162,960
3,716

0
0

$1,231,084
66,859

300
oÁ9T

$499
472

$1,199
3,900

103%
155%

120o/o

1s5%

12jo/o

40%
130%
85%

$225
3,705

$1,118,028
62,783
2,460

148

$971 $s,09e

$10,648
6,024

82,157
4,851

0
0
0

$103,681 140o/o

$3,930

$8,651
6,819

202,989
655

1,997
1,456

184

f)$63

OPERATIONS $3,529

0
0

893
0
0
0

2

69%$0
59

0
0
0
5
0
0

J

82%
46%

747%
49%
Oo/o

6%
o%
19%

s2,748
879

0
1,1 1B

0
607

0
0

20Yo

$222,749

$2,937
3,537
1,560
4,175

196
2,511

521
66

$365 $5,352 18o/o

$974
1,522
7,006
1,014
2,547
3,496
1 ,198

0
0

4o/o

152%
100%
9%

42%
350%

$15,503

$3,1 s8
854

5,428
1,362
4,720

0
0

1 ,196
151

$1 35
0

700
369

0
0
0
0
0

$1,204 $17,757 34o/o $16,869
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NOVATO RECYCLED WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30,2O2O
JUNE YEAR TO DATE YTD/

2O2O ACTUAL BUDGET%

$120 $1,326 133%
133%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
Distributed from Novato (0.2o/o)

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Legal Fees
Consulting Services/Studies
Distributed from Novato (2.4o/o)

GAS868 Adjustment
GENERAL & ADMlNISTRATIVE

Depreciatiofr (Note 5)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

General Funds
RWF Replacement Fund
Workers'Comp Fund
StoneTree RWF Loan

Total lnterest Revenue
Other Non-Operating Revenue

NON-OPERATING REVENUE

NON.OPERATING EXPENSE
RWF SRF Loan lnterest Expense
Expansion SRF Loan lnterest Expense
Other Non-Operating ExPense
Capital Contribution Expense-NSD&LGVSD

NON.OPERATING EXPENSE

NET TNCOME(LOSS) $23 353

$1 118

120 $1,326

$105
3,250

52,508
8.248

$1,1 1B

$o
0

52,910
0

$0
0

4,569
683

$5,252 $64,1 1 1

39,486 473,828
$1 29 297 fi1,022,728

oPERATING INCOME/(LOSS) $37,37e $275,600

NON-OPERATING REVENUE
nterest

$43,224
79,796

431
21,473

-----'T4TSãF_
0

$52,910

473,825
$1 087 361

$96,058

$17,866
58,286

390
48 002

$124,544
0

-lTÃ5ø
$52,543
268,091

3,354
0

$323,988

($103,386)

$24,764,880
(103,386)

0
(1,239,907)

823,421,587

95o/o

117o/o

100%
106%

102%

960/o

60%
179o/o

101%
97o/o

204%

(25e%)

76%

91,922
6,037

32
978

$8,969
0

$8,969 $144,923 1790/o

$3,889
19,'106

0
0

s47,243
233,451

0
305,711

$586,405

___l$1ggBB2)_

$23,421,587
(165,882)

10,000
(6Be,6oo)

822,576,105

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY
NET TNCOME(LOSS)
Developer' ln-Kind' Contributions
FRC Transfer to/from Novato

ENDING FUND EQUITY

$22,995

23,353
10,000
96,1 53
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WEST MARIN WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30,2O2O

JUNE
2020

YEAR TO DATE
ACTUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

OPERATING REVENUE
Water Sales
BillAdjustments
Bimonthly Service Charges
Account Turn-on Charges
New Account Charges
Returned Check Charges
Backflow Service Charges

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENSE

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
Supervision & E ng
Operating Expense
Maint of Structures
Water Quality Surveillance
Purchased Water - MMWD
GAS868 Adjustment
GASB75 Adjustment (OPEB)

SOURGE OF SUPPLY
PUMPING
Maint of Structures and Grounds
Maint of Pumping Equip
Electric Power
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GAS875 Adjustment (OPEB)

PUMPING

OPERATIONS
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense
Maintenance Expense
Maint of Telemetry Equipment
Leased Lines
G.AS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GASB75 Adjustment (OPEB)

WATER TREATMENT 
OPERATIONS

Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense
Purification Chemicals
Maint of Structures & Grounds
Maint of Purification Equipment
Electric Power
Laboratory Direct Labor
Laboratory Services
Water Quality Supervision
Customer Water Quality
Lab Expense Distributed from Novato
GAS86B Adjustment (Pension)
cASB75 Adjustment (OPEB)

WATER TREATMENT

$838,938
(25,231)
192,539

336
115

q

094 6 588

$93,228 $1 ,013,2e4

$77,334
(1,260)
16,045

0
'15

0

115%o $748,090
(42,268)

1 85,1 84
1,036

150
1B

6,573

104o/o

34o/o

12%

109o/o

83%

$o
14

8,765
0
0
0
0

$2,680
1,500

18,064
14

171
0
U

$2,051
4,080

16,906
572
322
468

59

132o/o

110o/o

25%
226o/o

1%

150o/o

10Oo/o

339%
143o/o

1160/o

104o/o

$898,784

$8,779

$620
2,584
4,020

0
0

$22,425

$9,043
37,303
39,954

0

0

$24,458

$10,424
15,825
37,683

1,405
177

$7,224

$996
1,815

66
3,142

352
ñ

0

$86,300 180o/o $65,515

$13,905
17,673

1,088
16,285
4,1 33

0
0

$20,518
17,029

257
13,287
4,094
3,641

459
$6,371

$890
1,216

0

198
0

2,019
5,060

375
106

28
2,928

0
0

$53,084 109o/o $59,285

$14,058
22,890

3,332
6s4

7,572
19,802
42,312

5,748
3,060
2,579

22,965
0

0

$9,453
25,080

6,701
5,040

10,232
29,396
35,079
7,219
7,860
4,703

2'1,035
7,023

885

67o/o

7S%
67o/o

6SYo
.40%

94o/o

111o/o

82o/o

77o/o

29o/o

121o/o

$12,819 9144,571 84o/o $169,705
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WEST MARIN WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30,2O2O

JUNE
2020

YEAR TO DATE
ACTUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION
Supervision & Engineering
Facilities Location - USA
Customer Service Expense
Flushing
Storage Facilities Expense
Cathodic Protection
Maint of Valves
Valve Operation Program
Maint of Mains
Water Quality Maintenance
Backflow Dev lnspection/Survey
Maint of Copper Services
Maint of PB Service Lines
Maint of Meters
Detector Check Assembly Maint
Maint of Hydrants
Hydrant Operation
Single Service lnstallation
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GASB75 Adjustment (OPEB)

TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION
CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
Meter Reading
Collection Expense - Labor
Uncol lectable Accounts
Distributed from Novato (3.6%)
cAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GAS875 Adjustment (OPEB)

CONSUMER ACCOUNT¡NG

WATER CONSERVATION
Water Conservation Program
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GASB75 Adjustment (OPEB).-.-;-^

I L., I l{L VUA I trI( UL,,Nì'Er{VA I IUN¡

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Legal Fees
Consulting Services/Studies
Distributed from Novato (3.6%)
GAS86B Adjustment (Pension)

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE

Depreciation (Nore s)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

$342
395

1,837
0

1,341
0

0
0

115
U

0

0

477
403

$5,939
11,564
I 009
7,137

19,867
28

705
0

1 1,886
0

1,057
883

19,771
1,613
1,222

0
0

(6,342)
0
U

$5,936
7,868
8,046

0

21,813
1,464
1,108
4,889
7,783

718
2,547
9,708

41,5'13
2,467

0
3,977
5,355
7,330
8,843

17o/o

96%
18oo/o

64o/o

1%
23o/o

0%
198o/o

0%
1B%

29%
6Bo/o

32%
61%
0%
0%

0

0
0

4,377)
0
0 1151

$534 $84,338 54o/o 9142,478

$1,073
0

0

1,341
0
0

$8,437
26

(2eB)
12,475

728
92

0

0

0
0

$2,413 $22,856 82%

$13,474
0
0

15oo/o

0
0

$2,08s $13,474 150Yo

064

92

$B

14,7

67o/o

0%
0%

114o/o

15o/o

0%
112o/o

1B3o/o

99o/o

100o/o

149Yo

$21,459

87,221
364
46

85$2,0

$7,631

$1,734
0

4,978
4,828

$o
898

63,467
0

$1,902
0

57,206
58,217

$11,539

15,404

$67 169

$26,059 $156,965

$117,324

185,652

$730,429

$64,365

186,922

$741 ,819

oPERATTNG TNCOME(LOSS)

17
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WEST MARIN WATER
DËTAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30, 2O2O

JUNE
2020

YEAR TO DATE
ACTUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

NON-OPERATING REVENUE
lnterest - General Funds
lnterest - FRC
lnterest - WO Fund
lnterest - Bank of Marin Project Fund
Rents & Leases
Tax Proceeds - OL-2 G.O. Bond
Tax Proceeds - PR-2 Tax Allocation
Other Non-Operating Revenue

NON-OPERAT¡NG REVENUE

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE
Bank of Marin Loan lnterest Expense
PRE-1 Revenue Bond lnterest Exp
PR-6 Revenue Bond lnterest Exp
Other Non-Operating Expense

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY
NET TNCOME/(LOSS)
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL
Connection Fees
PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS lttote ttc¡

ENDING FUND EQUITY

$3,759
0

bJ
1,467

0
0

2,656
29

$48,021
2,053

850
21,397

5,305
o

55,673
J¿

$35,595
3,735

736
18,144

5,1 50
b

55,064
686

99%

$7 ,574 $133,336 142%

98%

480o/o

23o/o

$23,631
0

0

B$1 16

0
0

0

143%
133o/o

101o/o

151o/o

$119,116

$25,1 50
1,073
2,576

810704
$1 ,816 $24,335

NET INCOME/(LOSS) $32,217 $3e1,866

$29,609

$246,472

32,217
$6,68s,965

391,866

0
0

0

0

$6,431,493
246,472

8,000
0--T6Fs5E-nfi7,077,832
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OCEANA MARIN SEWER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30,2O2O

JUNE
2020

YEAR TO DATE
ACTUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL
OPERATING REVENUE
Sewer Service Charges $21,762 $264,372

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE $21,762 $264,372

OPERATING EXPENSE

SEWAGE COLLECTION
Supervision & Engineering
lnspection
Maps & Records
Operating Expense
Facilities Location
Maint of Telemetry Equipment
Maint of Lift Stations
Maint of Manholes
Maint of Sewer Mains
Electric Power
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GASB75 Adjustment (OPEB)

SEWAGE COLLECTION
SEWAGE TREATMENT

101%
101o/o

$252 720

s252,720

$440
0

0
777
249
141

0

0

0

1,545

123%
40o/o

120o/o

250o/o

Oo/o

0o/o

117V"

76%
0%

53o/o

59%
51%

111o/o

209o/o

$26,634
0

56
12,325
2,006
3,614

'17,509

0

0
14,082

0

0

0

0

15,344
2,141
1,782

11,415
0

2,637
14,778
3,330

420

71$1 1,4

0

$3,1 s2 $76,225 96% $63,318

Operating Expense
Maint of Equipment
Laboratory Direct Labor
Lab Expense Distributed from Novato
Electric Power
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GASB75 Adjustment (OPEB)

SEWAGE TREATMENT
SEWAGE DISPOSAL
Operating Expense
Maint of Pump Stations
Maint of Storage Ponds
Maint of lrrígation Field
GAS86B Adjustment (Pension)
GASB75 Adjustment (OPEB)

SEWAGE DISFOSAL
CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
Collection Expense - County of Marin
Distributed from Novato (0.6%)

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING

$725
134

0
20

556
0

0

$10,580
4,722
4,107
2,229

12,523
0

0

$21,042
8,846
5,434
s,268
9,224
1,093

137
$1,435 $34,162 TBY,

35%
4B%
77%
39%

$2,029 $24,013 52%

1,256
540
233

0
0

$5,26s
3,352

12,314
3,083

0
0

$4,035
1,936
7,396

382
936
'1 1B

$49,046

$0

$o
134

$466

$r4Fot

$466
BSVo

108%o

511

$1,977

696
$1 34 $2,1 62
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OCEANA MARIN SEWER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOÐ ENDING JUNE 30, 2O2O

JUNE
2020

YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL
YTD/

BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

GEN ERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Legal Fees
Distributed from Novato (1.1o/o)
Liability lnsurance
GASB68 Adjustment

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE

Depreciation (Note s)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE
oPERATTNG TNCOME/(LOSS)

NON.OPERATING REVENUE
Rents & Leases
lnterest - General Funds
lnterest - WC Fund
Tax Proceeds - OM-1/OM-3 Tax Alloc
Other Non-Operating Revenue

NON-OPERATING REVENUE

NON-OPERAT¡NG EXPENSE
Other Non-Operating Expense

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE

NET INCOME/(LOSS) $e,575

BEGINNING FUND EQU¡TY
NET TNCOME/(LOSS)
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

Contribution in Aid of Construction
Connection Fees

PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS lttote tto¡
ENDING FUND EQUITY

9,575

$2,646
20,878
2,110

13,874

$o
24,149

1,775
0

$2,646
1,817

175

$5,787

3,698

$16,235

$39,509

46,048

$222,119

91%
106Yo

158o/o

124%
95%

151%

135%

99%

lO+"1"

149

$o
1,164

22
2,844

17

$5,527 $42,2s3

$25,925

38,1 94

$193,263

$59,457

$250
5,359

264
58,683

0

$64,555

$t 186

117%

$1,186

$122,826

$1,416,011
122.826

0
0

(16,1 10)

$1,522,727

$250
10,762

304
59,346

234
$4,048 $70,896

$901$o
$o $901

$112,248

$1,522,727
112,248

0
0
0

0
0
0

$1,634,975

20
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES

PERIOD ENDING June 30, 2020
t:\accountants\f inancials\stmtf y20\f cpnl0620.xlsl equip

JUNE
2020

FYTD
TOTAL

FY 19t20
BUDGET

(ovER)
UNDER Notes

1 ADMINISTRATION
a Website Upgrade
n Exchange Server Upgrade
c, Timekeeping Software UPgrade

2 ENGINEERING

$0
0

0

$10,000
7,000

'10,000

$o
0

0

$10,000
7,000

10 000

$o

$o 015$B

$8,015

$o $27,000 $27,000

$0 $8,015
($8,015)

1,2a Copier

3 OPERATIONS/MAINTENANCE

$0

$0
U

0

0

$o $o $28,000 $28,000
0 '116,965 130,000 13,035
0 0 28,000 28,000
0 21,205 0 (21,205)

a, Metals Analyzer
o 100 KW Towable Generator
c. 45 KW Towable Generator (2)

o. Portable Light Generator

$0
61,431
77,489

0

$68,000
90,000
50,000
12,000

$68,000 r

28,569
(27,489)
12,000

4 VEHICLE & ROLLING EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES
a. 112 ton 2WD Pick-Up WTool Box & Radio
o. Vacuum Excavator
c Hybrid SUV w/Radio
o. Truck Bed Body for S-Yard Diesel Dump Truck

Notes
(1) Replacement item.
(2) Not budgeted for FY20. Unused funds from ltem 1c were used for this purchase

$0 $138,920 $220,000 $81,080

TOTAL EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES $O $285,105 $433,000 $147,8q5.

21
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NORTH. MARIN WATER DISTRICT
EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY

FOR PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30,202CI

West Oceana YTD
Marin Marin Total

Annual YTD Prior
Budget Budget % YTD Actual

ot/o
OPERATING EXPENSE

1

2

J

4

6

7

I
a

10

11

t¿

13

14

15

to

17

ES

Water Purchases
Depreciation
Materials, Services & Supplies
Consulting Services/Studies
Chemicals
Electric Power
Vehicles and Equipment (Distrib)

Tools & Supplies (Distrib)

Retiree Medical Expenses
Water Conservation Rebates

lnsurance & Claims
Offìce Supplies & Postage
GASB 68 Adjustments
Overhead Charges (Gain)/Loss

Distributed Costs (Lab, G&A,ConsAcctg)

Total Operating Expense

lnterest Expense & Other

Total Expense

Warehouse, Shop & Yard

Salaries & Benefìis

Materials, Services & Supplies
Depreciation
Distributed Costs

TotalW/H, Shop & Yard

District Capital Outlav
Salaries & Benefits
Equipment Expenditures
Debt Principal Payments
Materials, Services & Supplies

Total District Capital Outlay

Developer Funded Proíects
Salaries & Benefits
Materials, Services & Supplies

Total Developer Projects

Total

6,623,534
2,660,688
1,804,551

140,301

503,664
499,'138

209,681
272,710
186,221

24,339
109,939

8'1,853
1,294,648
(331,882)
(564,016)

Novato ed

351,575
473,828

85,962
3,250
2,748
3,900
1,490
1,943

U

0

0
U

8,248
U

54,441

$1,022,728
280,694

$4,288
0

667,381
2,297

0
185,652
56,334

0
3,332

59,756
16,9'15

19,201
0

250
0

0

58,217
0

94,963

$730,429
24,335

9144,408
0

47,127
876,096

0

46,048
51,223

0

0

25,993
4,1 65
3,125

0

0

2,110
0

13,874
0

22,574

9222,119
901

$14,934
0

0
142,611

6,975,108
3,366,216
1,998,070

143,551

509,744
588,788
232,250
tô^ ô70

186,221

24,589
112,049
81,853

1,374,987
(331,882)
(3e2,038)

5,985,000
3,528,000
1 ,910,000

335,000
484,000
513,000
317,000
177,400
172,000
'104,000

173,000
102,000

0
(3e,000)

(366,000)

117%
oÂ0/^

105%
430k

105%
115%
73%

168%
108o/o

24o/o

65o/o

80%

851%
107%

109%
92%

78%
84%

^o/w/o

107%

71%
80%
81%
53o/o

149%
435%

259%

5,383,443
3,451,154
1,982,542

305,543
386,599
504,950
256,393
272,723
'197,855

33,300
100,815
138,737
520,17 4

905,405
(377,821)

Chan

29%
-2%
0%

-53%
31%
lO 70

-9%
8 o/o

E A/-

-1ô Ya

11%
-41 0k

I 1A O/_

3%

8%
19%

13%
-512 o/o

30%
ll I 7a

-18 %

140 %
-13 ak

-18 %

4 À O/ta /o

194 o/o

89%

4%

18

N)19
Ì\)

$19,494,213
494,131

$19,988,344 ç1,303,421 9754,764 5223,020 $22,269,549 $20,491,000 109% $20,493,071 8%

$21 ,469,489 $'19,621 ,000
800,060 870,000

$19,822,299
670,772

$183,329
($68,655)

$1 1 8,1 53
(232,827)

$548 155
1 18 579

2,151,005
3,294,174

s270,384
193,501

$463,885

$27,068,868

20

zt
22
ta,

24

26

27

29

$207,377
283,381
154,770

(64s,529)

$0

$285,239
285,1 05

1,139,575
1 ,660,139

$308,974
ÃAO ?ÃA

$878,330

$24,236,732

$0 $o $o

$0
0

0

0

$0
0

0

0

$0
0

0

0

$207,377
283,381
154,770

(645,52e)

$448,868
285,1 05

1,854,083
2,681,143

$309,598
569,866

$267,000
339,000

0

(606,000)

$o $0 $o

$3,370,058 $673,965 $1,067,631 9157,544 $5,269,198 $8,348,000 63% $6,111,912 - lJ 70

$628,000
355,000

2,279,000
5,086,000

$208,000
131,000

JU

JJ

5l

$624
1,561

$0 82j84

$1,977,386 91,824,579

$(1,051) $879,464 $339,000

$379,5'14 $28,418,211 $29,'178,000

$o
0

$o
(1,051)

97%

l1:11:434M 8t12t2020 S:\SageSoftware\SAGE1 0O\v201 6\tu1AS90\Repoñs\1 PAS ExpCaiegory FY2c ipi
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
VEHICLE FLEET ANALYSIS

FOR PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30,2O2O
Fiscal Year to Date

nsel 'G.
Vehicle Cost Mile

Lífe to Date FYTD2O FYTD19

ro 2009
tt 2010
p 2A1O
rs 2010
t¿ 2012
ts 2012
rc 2014
t¡ 2015
re 2015
re 2015
zc 2016
zt 2017
zz 2016
zz 2018
zt 2018
zs 2019
za 2019
zt 2019
.o tôl o

zs 2019
so 20'19
et 2020
sz 2020
ss 2020
34 lUtU
zs 2020

49
53
54
58
504
505
506
509
510
511
512
Ã12

515
516
517
518
520
521
522
523
ÊaÀ

526
527
528
F11

533
6?'^

537
538
539
540

5,726
400

2,908
oot

a oto
5,626
t orìo

5,'1 53
1,271
3,849
5,025
4,436
7,624
6,832
1,671

10,652
13,690
3,786
9,215
4,144
a 4Õ1

6 qq¿
o Ã7r

4,813
8,740
1,549
3,197
1,085
3,822
1,188
3,822
1,188
3,822

($sa¡
(s747)
(s158)
($208)

s4,616
$16,429
$1 2,1 66

Q2 tO2

($646)
(s37)

$'1 ,914
($1 027)
$5,872
s5,390

($1 ,e61)
s6,1 65
Q1 1Ã7

($oa¡
s3,960
s1,069
$2,624
s2,624

(s1,554)
$4,603
$1,384

>4¿ I

(s 1 20)
s574
s967
s412

(s448)
s307

($1,277)

1 16,962
132,748
109,681
1 33,1 90

88,841
106,715
79,364

111,893
134,302
Aô A¿A

114.687
87,394
68,777
74,632
15,228
92,660
-70 )QÊ.

43,976
Ãn Ão2

23,757
30,235
t),tII
17,595
7,735
8,740
1 549
3,360
3,985
3,985
a oaÂ
? ôaÃ

3,985
3.985

$0.43
$0.46

$0 44
s0.29
$0.34
qn ?o

s0 34
qn /.Ã

Þu. b5
öu.t¿
s0.59
s0 49
s0 85
s0.53
$0 17
c^ 2 /

$0 31

s0 44
$0.33
$0 04
$0.07

$0 69
$1.69
$0.35
$1.02
($0.5e)
($2 os¡
($2.71)
s0.49
$0 68
$0.60
s0.79
s0.70
$0 89
s0.85

$0.72
s0.44

$0 42
$0.57
s0 61

$0 38
s0 67
s0.34
s0 47
s0 73
s0 36
s0 64
$0 36
s1.05
s0 46
s1.11
cô ôr
$0.25

$0 15
s1 .17
$0.49
$0 45
s0 68
s0.53
$0 49
$0 43
s0 30
s0,35
$0.43
s0 31

s0 41
SO,28
s0 77
s0.99

2003 Dodge Dakota 4x4
2004 Chev C1500
2004 Chev C1500 Xtra Cab
2005 Ford Ranger
2007 Chev Colorado
2008 Ford F250 4x4
2008 Ford F250 4x4
2008 Chev Colorado 4x4

STP
Construction
Pool
FSR/Pool
Pool
Maintenance
STP
Engineering
Sold in Jan 2020
STP
Elec/Mech
Construct¡on
Reed
Castellucci
Kurfirst
Ocodhain
Arendell
Watkins/Shop
Roberto
Lab
Bynum
On-Call
Rupp
Stompe
Clark
Eng,A/Vtr Consv
Castellucci
Grisso
SÏP
Rodriguez
Kehoe, Chris
STP
Pool
LeBrun

$3,932
$789

$r,012
$673

(s4,630)
($1 1,s36)

($7,889)
$2,524

$863
s2,319
$3,945
$3,1 20
$6 756
s5,785
$6,598
$7,691
s5,991
$3,1 54
S3,BB9
Þ2, JÞJ
s4,366
s2,283
$6,457
$1,635
$4 068
ör,rJz
s1,158

s690
$1,369
91,249
$1,754
$1,319

$1 76
QroÂ

$3,878
$42

$854
$466
($1+¡

$4,893
$4,277
s5,807

s217
$2,282
$5,859
$2,093

$12,628
$1 1,1 76

$4,638
s13,856

$9,1 47
s3,056
s7,849
s3,432
s6,990

s729
s11,061

$3,019
$4,489
s1 ,012
s1 ,732
s1,657
$1,78'1

$802
s2,061

s42
5U

s3.78

s2.94

$0 62

$1 .37

s0 42
s0.40
$0.52
s0.59
$0 45
$0.65
$1 10

s0.57

$0.46
$0.46
$0 42
$0.78
$0.78
$0.36
s0.1 9
(rl Ã l

$0 50
s0 48
$0.64
$0 56
$0 80

Toyota Prius Hybrid
Ford F1 50 4x4
Ford F150
Ford F150
Ford F250
Ford F250
Ford F150
Ford F250 4x4
Ford Escape 4X4
Ford F150 4X4
Nissan Frontier
Ford Escape 4X4
Nissan Frontier
Ford Cargo Van
Dodge Ram 2500
Chev Colorado 4x4
NISSAN ROGUE
NISSAN ROGUE
NISSAN FRONTIER
FORD F-150 2WD
FORD F-150 4x4
CHEVROLET COLORADO 2WI
FORD F25O 4X4
FORD F25O 4X4
FORD F150 2WD
FORD F150 2WD

SO

f\)
(/)

188 t/ô

I l,zþþ
$11,119
$12,674
512,674
$18,131
$12,350

$3,624
s12,412

68'1

oaÃ

38,683
43,807
40,245
32,910

778

a

r 1999 Ford F350 WSvc Body
z 2002 Int'l 5 Yd Dump
s 1999 Ford F550 3-Yd Dump "
a 20Q6 lnt'i 4300 Crew
s 2009 Peterbilt 32S Crew
e 2012 Int'l 5 Yd Dump
t 2015 lnt'l 5 Yd Dump
a 2017 Ford F350 4x4
e 2019 FORD F55O 3 YD DUMP

on

1 9 Pool
44 Construction
52 Consiruction
503 Bergstrom
508 BreiVCrew
514 Rupp
519 Sjoblom
525 Ielmorìni/Davenport
530 Construction

s970
$7,774
s1,802
$7,052
$7,517
$7,236

$15,682
s8,378

778 $3 QÃ2

646
3,066
2,174
2,413

, 169
tAq

,867
,425

s2,226
s18,893

$5,670

$25,648
$19,586
$19,306
s20,790

Qt ta

$1.48
$1.35
ÞU, ÞJ
52.71
$1.38

s3.47
$2.20
c2 aa

$0,89
s2.17
s2.02

1 38,265 $0.00 91 50 $0 00
108,505 51.78 $2.54 51 64
98,501 $0.00 s0.83 s0.00
48,52Q $2.53 $2.92 52.29

2
J

4
I
1

Eat

t 
Expense amount shoM excludes deprecÌat¡on (approximately SB4,O00 for Fy2O).

- - $7/hr and the recovery rate for veh¡cles j-ton and over is $14lhr. An additional 50% is charged to developer projects to refect the fair market value of the vehicle be¡ng used.
3 Þurchased ud iñ æ sù 32 ffi milos Mire¿se sh* is lobl i¡curd 3iñæ ois'd ourche$- 

Í:\Accountants\Financiars\stm $y2owehss.xrslJ U N 20



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM DETAIL

PERIoD ENDING Juñê 30' 2020 
-..-- ,."""ou"r"n,un**'o.i.g,-"r$go'ouro.o.,*"J"j-"gn."'","n

cosTlHRU JUNE FYTD FY 19t20 (OVER) TOTAL

Desc on JUNE 2019 2020 TOTAL BUDGET UNDER cosT

NOVA

'1-7700-01

1,7700-02

1 -7700-03

1-7700-06

1-77A0-0/-

1-7700-11

1-7700-12

1-7700-13

1-7700-1 5

1-7700-16

1-7700-17

T7704-19

1-7700-08

1-7704-20

1-7700-21

1-77A0-24

177A0-25

17740-26

1-7i00-27

s424,575
24,065
53,020

349,202
55,1 05

1,001,289
18,261

447,287
242,177
a) Á.Á.1

2, AAA

35,660
1,534,674

101,232
2,816
3,300
2,416

66,421

$876
100

0
0
0

1,435
0

2,412
0
0
0

1,118
o Ãol

834
0
0
0
0

0
417

0
Ê lEE

$11,840
843
500

1,946
0

18,265
246

27,443
0

298
OJ

5,350
116,077

14,890
1,027

0
1ç

0

11,487
9,071

0
94,053
10,925

0

$35,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
1,000

18,000
2,000

65,000
0

7,000
1,000
5,000

130.000
15,000
2,000
1,000
2,000

0

$23,1 60
4,157
4,500
a. î4a
1 000
(265)

1,754
37,557

0
6,702

917
(350)

13,923
111
o7?

1,000
1,925

0

$436,415
24,907
53,519

351,148
55,105

1,019,555
18,507

474,729
242,177

92,739
3,547

41,010
1,650,75'1

116,121
3,843
3 300
2,491

66,421

1-7700-28

r Cash for Grass
z Landscape Efficiency Rebates
a Fixtures Purchases
a Washing Machine Rebates
s Demonstration Garden lmprovements
o Toilet Rebate SF
z Toilet Rebate MF
a Residential Audits
s High Efficiency Toilet Distribution
ro Water Waste Ordinance Monitoring
rr Swimming Pool Cover Rebate
rz ET Controller Rebate
r¡ Administration
r¿ New Development Wtr Cons Program
rs Demand Offset Rebate Program
to Grant Administration
rz Hot Water Recirculation Rebate
la Residential Fill Station

¡. Commercial
r Toilet Rebate Program
z Commercial Audits

c. Public Outreach/lnformation
r Fall Newsletter
z Spring Newsletter
3 Summer Newsletter
4 Publ¡c Outreach i H2O l-air
s Marketing
e Public Outreach/Leadership Novato

c. Large Landscape
r Large Landscape Audits
z Large Landscape Budgets
a Large Landscape lrrig Efficiency Rebates
¿ CIMIS Station Maintenance
s Administration-Large Landscape

TOTAL NOVATO WATER CONSERVATION

WEST MARIN WATER
rogram

8,000
9,000

0
17,000
15,000

0

(3,487)
(71)

0
(77,053)

4,075
0

89,458
103,959
20,290

236,197
172,908

11,327

N)
5

r7704-29

1,7700-34

17704-31

1-7 t-04-32

1-7700-33

i-770a-34

t77AtO2 1-77A1-05

1-7701-A3 l7 t'a1-44

r-8672-16

1-8672-17

1-86t-2-18

1-7700-04

1-7700-C5

1-774C-22

1-7702-01

1-7702-A2 1-7702-44

1-8653-01

o /.Jo r

29,291

77,971
94,888
20,290

142,144
161,983

11.327

200
6,281

10,000
9,000

9,800 67,561
2,719 35,572

3,000 2,035 91,788
1,000 (556) 40J23
4,000 3,500 14,960
2,000 I ,737 19 760

13,000 (1 ,033) 103,892

$5,315,864 $40,019 fi348,217 $390,000 $41 ,783 $5,664,080

90,824
38,567
14,460
19,496
ao aÂo

965
1,556

500
263

14,033

64II

417

0
o

0
0

0
0
0
Ã

a. n $104,061 $2,085 613,474 $9,000 ($4,474) $117,535

$e,000085 474$131

2-5166-00

TOTAL WATER CONSERVATION EXPENDITURES 474 117 535



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

PERIOD ENDING June 30,2020
ì:gccouniaôßÌrnancrårs\stmryzu!cÞmubzu.xrst0f 0lccrs

COST THRU
JUNE 2019

JUNE
2020

FYTD
TOTAL

FY 19t20
BUDGET

(OVERYUNDER
BUDGET

TOTAL
COSTDescri on

a. train/Pipefiñé Replacements
1-71s3-oo r Replace Plastic thin Walled Pipe < 4-inch

2 Other Main Replacements (60+ years old)
'r-7'186-00 e Main Replacement-Grant Ave Cl Pipe Repl W/PVC

b Main/Pipeline Additions
1-71s0-00 1 San Mateo lnleVOutlet Pipe (2,200')

c. PB Service Line Replacements
1-7i3s-Å r Repl PB in Sync w/City Paving (30 Svcs)
1-713s-22 z Repl PB-Hatch Rd & Mill Rd (13)
1-7122-n 3 Other PB Replacements (80 Svcs)
i-7123-24 + Repl PB-Lanham Village (32)
1-71,23-26 s Repl PB-MCC Estates (23)

d. Relocations to Sync w/City & County CIP
i-8737-Å t Other Relocations

TOTAL PIPELINE REPLACEMENTS/ADDITIONS

0
0

0

73,577
0

0
6,896

0

195
195

70,000
(42,087)
80,000

(32 03e)
(111,243)

56,760 11,692

0

s2,031
?,1¿J

$15,329
0

5,665

80,580

0
42,087

0

32,039
111,243

$150,000
200,000

0

50,000

70,000
0

80,000
0
0

70 000

$100,000
10,000

163,000
25,000

0

0

$900,000

$'134,671
200,000

(5,665)

000

$15,329
0

5,665

0

42,087
0

105,615
111,243

$0
0

0

$1,627
0

0

(30 580) 137,340

0 0 0

$10,275
9,736

(38,670)
.A AE4

(,137)
98 054

$869,349
(206,672)

$417 279

s89,725
264

¿/ô. toó
68,635

B,862

$109,936
206,672

I

1-7118-02

1-7118-11

1-6600-69
'1-6600-96

1-6600-u

1-6600-97

1-6600-82

1-6600-92

1-6600-98

1-6600-99

1-6600-34

'1-6600-38

'1-6600-39

e. Aqueduct Replacements & Enhancements
r MSN B2-Utìlity Agreement Costs'
2 AEEP Post Construction Costs

i Dam Concrete Repair (Apron)
z Leveron¡ Creek Embankment Repair
3 Other Treatment Plant lmprovements
a Effìciency lmprovements
s STP Generator
o STP-Chemical System Upgrades
z STP-Backwash Pond 30" lsolation Valve
e STP-Outlet Valve Replacement
s STP-High Service Pump #3 Replacement
ro STP-High Service Road Repair
rr STP-Replace Chlorine Control System

TOTAL BUILDING, YARD, & STP II|JIPROVEMENTS

$20,510
974

s28

s89,725
¿ô4

201,670
649

t,lJ/
98 054

s30,6 5 1

206 672

SO ($20 510) $118,247
974 19 507

8,484 4 4.7 JEN
11 Êaa

no tao 5/
7 0

aÈA

2 SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS
1-70a743 a. Detector Check Assembly Repair/Repl i-t+ry¿
1-7oeo-04 o. Anode lnsiallations ltsoiyr¡
1-717e-oo c. Asset Management Software ProcuremenVimplementation
i-7136-00 d. Facilities Security Enhancements
1-7181-co e. Novato Fair Shopping Center-Backflow
1-7158-oo f, Advanced Meter lnformation Retrofit

TOTAL SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS

3 BUILDINGS, YARD, & S.T.P,IMPROVEMENTS
a. Administration Building

r-6501-44 t Officellard Bu¡lding Renovation'?

1-6s01-47 z Offìce Roof Renovation
b. Corp Yardil/úareho use/Constructio n Office

1-6so2-47 t Other Yard lmprovements
c. Stafford Treatment Plant

SO

0

74,499
67,986

7,725

o1 aÀa

0

0
0

0

0

N)
C'l

I

0

402

$79,285
0

$19
0 0

t/J

195,455
2,907

0
0
0

n o¿^

0
0
0
0
0

0

0

0
0

0

0

8,390
(8,3e0)

0
0

10,787

F^ 7^^
42,817

0
0

147,667
60,050
21 ,145

0

15,803
14,673
10.787

50,000
191 ,000
1r4,000
'100,000

400,000
0

0

0

0
0

0

(4 756)
'1 48, r 83
1 14,000
100,000
252,333
(60,050)
(21,145)

0
(1 s,803)
(14,673)
(10 787\

250,211
45,724

0
0

147,667
68,996
21 ,145

0

15,803
14,673
10.787

t/J 30,000 )o p.27

498o?

s286 593 $10,979 $605,194 $1 ,785,000 91,179,806 s891.787



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

PERIOD ENDING June 30, 2020
t:rcc0u.r¿nts :lancrêrs srlny-01[cprubzu Íslp o,ecrs

Descript¡ofi

4 STORAGE TANKS & PUMP STATIONS

a Tank Construction
r OId Ranch Rd Tank Replacement

b. Tank Rehabilitation
r Hydropnuematic Tank Repairs
z Cherry Hill #2 Recoat

c. Lynwood Pump Station Motor Control Center
d. Crest P.S.(Design/Const)/Reloc School Rd P.S.
e. lndian Hills PS-Bypass
t. Rockrose PS-Bypass
s. Diablo PS-Bypass
n. Quick Connects-Generators (16)

TOTAL STORAGE TANKS & PUMP STATIONS

Replace PRE ïank #44 (25K Gal W125K Gal)
New Gallagher Well #2
PB Replace in Sync w/County Paving
WM Bromìnated-TTHM Reductìon
Lagunitas Bridge Pipeline Replacement
Olema Creek Bridge Replacement
Olema PS Wireless to Tank
PB Replacement-Drakes View Dr
Gallagher Ranch Streambank Stabilization
Olema Pump Station Pump Replacement
PB ReplacemenlSR 1 Pt Reyes (32)

TOTAL WEST MARIN WATER SYSTEM

(OVER)/UNDER
BUDGET

$50,687 $11,532 $92,065 $150,000 $57,935 6142,752

COST THRU

JUNE 2019

$1 1,361 ,145

JUNE
2020

FYTD

TOTAL
FY 19120

BUDGET
TOTAL
COST

15,145
385,833
150,067
226,865

/,tcÕ
1 Ê11

710
36,071

$1,314,751
0

'1 ,095,783
89,594

867,892
6,875,264
1J24,445

0

s1 13.416 S1 1 ,367,729

1-6207-24

1-7170-00

1-6112-24

1-614'1-00

1Â111-21

1S116-21
'1-6'105-20

1-71 84-00

s337,106 $17,677 $634 986 $1,535,000 5900,014 $972,091

1 5,1 45
16,754

127,093
124,870

946
901
710

0

0

506
0

5,640
0
0
0

0

0

369,080
22,974

101,995
6,192
6,609

0

36,071

30,000
400,000
320,000
635,000

0
0
0

0

30,000
30,920

297,026
533,005

(6,I s2)
(6,60s)

0
(36,071)

$1 ,314,750
0

1,095,783
89,486

864,456
6,874,562
1J22,107

0

$0
0
0

108
3,437

0

$20,000
100,000

0

0

0

0

0

0

$20,000
100,000

0
(1 0B)

(3,437)
(702)

\¿,JJ t )

0

5 RECYCLEDWATER
s-7127-oo a. NBWRA Grant Program Administration

¡. Other Recycled Waier Expenditures
56058-10 c. Expansion to Central Area3
s-6058-rs ¿. RW Central Right of Way Costs3
s-6058-20 e. RW Central Private Onsite Retrofit
5-6csg-40 f. RW Central-West Side Const
s-6ose-50 g. RW Central-Norman Tank Rehab/Const
s-7162-02 h. South Novato Dual Plumbed Shell Loop

TOTAL RECYCLED WATER
6 WEST MARIN WATER SYSTEM

$0
0

0

0

0

0

0
(1 82)

(s1 82) s6,584

$38,618
9,489

109,438

000

s40,000
15,000

0

20c

N)
O)

2-6263-20 a.

2-6609-20 b.

2-8829-00 C.

2-7i82-oa d.

2-8912-00 e.

2-8737-07 'f.

2.6130-23 g.

2-7123-2s F,.

2-71 85-00 l.

2-6130-24 j.

2-7123-27 k.

$235,454
8,720
4 A tÊ

20,482
18,742

1,010

$181,817
0

0

0

104
0

8,468
195

157,929
0

7) t)a

s343 309
73,895

0

47,256
13,615

703
8,468

66,264
386,826

7,270
75,876

s550,000
75,000
50,000

300,000
200,000

35,000
20,000

0

0
0

0

$206,691
1,105

50,000
t4t 7¿-a

'186,385

34,297
11,532

(66,264)
(386,826)

(7,270)
(75,876)

$578,764
82,616

1,455
67,738
2a aÈ1

1,714
8,468

68,078
386,826

7,270
75,876

0

,814
0

0

0

s287,677 $420,742 $1,023,482 $1,230,000 $206,518 S'1,3'11,159

7 OCEANA MARIN SEWER SYSTEM
a-a672-28 a. lnfiltration Repair
8-7085-04 b. Tahiti Way Lift Pump 1 Assembly
8-7173.00 c. OM Treatment Pond Rehab-404 GranlFEMA

TOTAL OCEANA MARIN SEWER SYSTEM

Q?O rôÃ

0

47,789

$0
0

240I

s1,382
5,511

(109,438)

Þ/ /,Õ lJ

9,489
157,227

$86,984 $8,240 5157,544 $55,000 (s102,544) $244,528

TOTAL PROJECT EXPENDTTURES $18,445,668 $489,159 $3,134,715 $5,643,000 $2,508,285 521,580,383



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

PERIOD ENDING June 30,2020
tf accountanñ\ilnancrars\srmÍyzu\cpmobru.xrslprolecf s

COST T
Descriotion JUNE 2019 2020 TOTAL BUDGET BUDGET COST

8 LESS FUNDED BY GRANTS, LOANS & REIMBURSEMENTS

($26,372) ($2,031 ) ($20,510) cn $20,510 ($46,882)a. MSN Aqueduct Caltrans Reimb-Segment B2'
FUNDING BY OTHERS (ACCRUEDYDEFERRED

Received
a. MSN Aqueduct Caltrans Reimb-Segment 824

o. Offìce/Yard Building Renovation'?
FUNDING BY OTHERS RECEIVED

NET PROJECT EXPENDITURES

Notes to Capital lmprovement Proiects Schedule:
(1 ) Funding provided 100% by Caltrans.
(2) Office/Yard Refurbish to be funded by Bank Loan.

($26,372)

($5s,974)
0

($59,s74)

18 359 322

($2,031 ) ($20,510)

$0 s0
00

s0

87 127 tt

$o $20,510 ($46,882)

cô

(900 000)

çn

(900,000)
($59,974)

0

$0 ($s00,000) (s900 000) ($5e,e74)

796 5277 8 7

t\)-{

56%

Novato Water Capital Projects
Novato Recycled Water Capital ProjecB
West Marin Water Capital Projects
Oceana Marin Sewer Capital Projects

Outl

CIP SUMMARY-GROSS EXPENDITURES:

0

PIIGross
157

5%
B3%
2860k

Current Month FYTD Total

(182)
420,742

120,000
1,230,000

6,584
1,423,482

000743

Novato Recycled Water Capital Projects
West Marin Water Capital Projects
Oceana Marin Sewer Capital Projects

Outl

CIP SUMMARY.NET EXPENDITURES:

000

etBud

11arovement 127

Novato Water Capital

Net

EO/-

B3o/o

286%

120,000
1,230,000

Current Month FYTD Total

(182)
420,742

6,584
1,023,482

157,544

CONSULTING SERVICES/STUDIES

1-405&20

1-4059-00

1-4073-00

1-4076-00

1-4477 -OO

1-7140-01

1 -4050-01

1 4060-00

1 -6501 -43

1 -4078-OO

1-4079-00

b. Local Water Supply Enhancement Study
c. Novato Water Master Plan Update
d. 2019 Cost of Service Study
e Stafford Lake Water Rights Update
f. Surplus Property
s. CVRA-Trans From At-Large Electíons
h. Potter Valley Project FERC Relicensing
i. Stafford Dam EAP & lnundation Mapping Updates
j. Urban Water Management Plan
k. STP Effìciency lmprovements
l. Electronic Document Management System

0
176,896

9,970
0

200
56,898

0
0
0

I a,¿¿ t

0
0
0

0
3,412

60,614

7,792
7,229

12,071
0

17,053
9,522
4,427
6,249

0

25,000
0

50,000
50,000

0
15,000
10,000
10,000
20,000

0
70,000

0
0

25,000
(3,412)

(10 614)
Á,Q 1t7
(7,7e2)
7 ,771

(2,071)
10,000
2,948

(o 
^))\65,573

(6 24e)
0

0
1 80,308
70,584

aaÒ

7,992
64,127
12,071

0
17,053
84,743
4,427
6,249

0

a aF

81

6,24

0
0
1

0
0
0
ô

0
0
0
0
I
0

m. COVID lmpacts-Safety
n. COVID lmpacts-Bldg Maintenance

urveyrya.1-4055-00

1-4057-00



North Marin Water District
Financial Statement Notes

North Marin Water District Financial Statement Notes
Notel-RestrictedCash
Connection Fee Fund: Cash available from collection of Connection Fees. The fee is charged to
developers based upon the estimate of cost necessary to construct capacity to serve the new
development. These funds are restricted by law for expansion of the water or sewer facilities within the
service area where the development occurs. Funds are disbursed from the Connection Fee Reserve as
expenditures are incurred to increase system capacity to serve new development. The fund balance
accrues interest month ly.

Wohler Pipeline Financing Fund: ln December 2002 ihe Sonoma County Water Agency sold $6.8
million (par) of 3O-year revenue bonds to finance the Wohler to Forestville Pipeline. NMWD's share of the
debt is $844,050 ($6,800,000 X11.2 / 90.4) ln January 2003 the Distrìctestablished this designated cash
and corresponding reserve account and transferred $844,050 of FRC money into the fund. The Wohler
Pipeline Financing Fund is credited with interest monthly. The restricted cash Wohler Pipeline Financing
Fund account and the related reserve account have been closed as of 10131118.

Collector #6 Financing Fund: The Sonoma County Water Agency received a $15.8 million State
Revolving Fund loan commitment at an interest rate of 2.8o/o repayable over 20 years for construction of
Collector #6. NMWD's share of Collector #6 is $'1,950,000 ($15,800,000 X '11.2 190.4).ln January 2003
the District established this designated cash and corresponding reserve account and transferred
$1,950,000 of FRC money into the fund. The Collector #6 Financing Fund is credited with interest
monthly. The restricted cash Collector #6 Financing Fund account and the related reserve account have
been closed as of 10/31/18.

Bank of Marin Project Fund: The District received an $B million loan from the Bank of Marin in October
2011 to fund the Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Project. The 2O-year, 3.54o/o annual percentage rate loan
requires monthly payments of $46,067 and will be fully amoftized on 1012712031. ln June 2012the Board
authorized reallocating $1 million of this loan to West Marin Water to repay Novato Water $223,000 owed
for previous loans to fund Long Range lmprovement Projects and the remainder to fund the Solids
Handling Facility at the Point Reyes Water Treatment Plant. The unexpended fund balance accrues
interest monthly.

Deer lsland RWF Replacement Fund: The State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan agreement required the
District to agree to establish and maintain a Water Recycling Capital Reserve Fund (WRCRF) for the
expansion, major repair, or replacement of the Deer lsland Recycled Water Treatment Plant. The
WRCRF is maintained in compliance with the "Policy for lmplementing the State Revolving fund for
Construction of Wastewater Treatment Facilities" in effect at the time the agreement was signed by the
District. The September 2003 Recycled Water Master Plan prepared by Nute Engineering recommended
limiting the reserve to fund replacement of the RWF electrical and mechanical equipment (including
transmission pumps) as they wear out. The cost of said equipment was $1,483,000 which, at Nute's
recommended 6% interest rate factor and 2S-year life, renders an annual funding requirement $115,000.
The fund balance accrues interest monthly.

Recycled Water Capital Replacement and Expansion Fund: The 2011 lnteragency Agreements for
Recycled Water between NSD, LGVSD & NMWD require that any payments to the Distributor (NMWD)
by the End User (Consumers) in excess of actual costs (marginal payments) shall be deposited in this
fund. Operation and Maintenance Costs are defined as the actual cost of: labor (including general and
administrative overhead plus tools and supplies normally applied), equipment and vehicle charges,
consumables (such as chemicals and electrical power), and spare parts and/or replaced components
necessary to reliably treat and deliver recycled water to the End Users. Operation and Maintenance
Costs do not include costs for major capital replacement or process changes. A payment of $305,711
was made to Novato Sanitary District in December 2019 for the Clearwell lmprovement Project.

Tax Receipts held in Marin County Treasury: Balance of tax proceeds collected and disbursed by the
County of Marin for repayment of the Olema (OL-2) general obligation bond debt. The County credits
interest to these funds quarterly.
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STP SRF Reserve Fund - Marin County Treasury: The 2004 Stafford Treatment Plant State Revolving
Fund (SRF) loan agreement requires the District to build a Reserve Fund equal to one year of payments
($1,044,474) in the Marin County Treasury during the first ten years of the 2)-year repayment period.
Every January 1 and July 1, commencing January 1,2010, the District deposits with the County 10% of
the semi-annual SRF payment. This Reserve Fund was fully funded at 6/30/19. The County credits the
fund with interest quarterly, which is applied to the semi-annual payments, and will use the Reserve to
pay the last 2 semi-annual SRF loan payments.

RWS North/South SRF Reserve Fund: The State Water Resource Control Board Agreements for the
seven Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loans made for expansion of the Recycled Water System
distribution system require that the District establish a reserve fund equal to one year's debt service
($614,299) prior to the construction completion date.

RWS Central SRF Reserve Fund: The State Water Resource Control Board Agreement for the Clean
Water State Revolving Fund Loan made for expansion of the Recycled Water System distribution system
requires that the District establish a reserve fund equal to one year's debt service ($275,773) prior to the
construction completion date.

Note 2 - Desiqnated Gash

Liability Contingency Fund: Established in 1986 when the District first elected to self-insure its general
liability risk. This reserve was funded with $1 million initially and $200,000 annually thereafter untit it
reached a balance of $2 million. ln FY9B the West Marin Water System was included in the fund and
built-up a proportional reserve of $74,000 over several years. Commencing FY93, $1 million of the
reserve was made available to fund loans to eligible employees under the District's Employer Assisted
Housing Program. ln August 2008, $500,000 was transferred into this reserve from the Self-lnsured
Workers' Compensation Fund and made available to fund Employer Assisted Housing Program loans.
Currently there is $525,000 in Employer Assisted Housing Loans outstanding (see Note 3). ln March
2005, $652,400 was expended from the fund to purchase a home at 25 Giacomini Road in Point Reyes
Station. The home is currently rented. ln 2006, $B,BB5 was added from the sale of surplus property in
West Marin. The fund balance does not accrue interest.

Workers' Compensation Fund: The District began self-insuring its workers' compensation liability July
2011. The savings accrued through self-insuring the liability is reserved in this fund for possible future
claims expense. The District carried a workers' compensation excess policy for claims that exceed
$1,000,000. Commencing July 2019 the District switched to'1't dollar workers'compensation coverage
with Zenith lnsurance Company.

Retiree Medical Benefits Fund: NMWD pays the cost of health insurance for retirees between the ages
of 55 and 65 and spouse under any group plan offered by CaIPERS. The retiree must be at least 55 and
have a minimum of 12 years (for employees hired on or before September 30, 2018) and a minimum of
20 years (for employees hired after September 30, 2018) of NMWD service at the date of retirement.
NMWD's contribution toward the chosen plan is capped in the same manner as all other NMWD
employees in the same class. Coverage terminates for the spouse when the spouse becomes eligible for
Medicare, or for both the retiree and spouse when the retiree becomes eligible for Medicare. When the
retiree or spouse becomes eligible for Medicare, NMWD pays up to the couple annuitant rate, which is
capped at $3,830 per year ($319/month). ln August 2003, NMWD transferred $2.55 million ($2.3 million
for current retirees plus $250,000 for future retirees) from unrestricted cash into a reserve to fund this
obligation. ln 2010 the Board directed staff to add $1,500 per employee annually as a payroll overhead to
accrue and accelerate amortization of this liability. The accrual is maintained as a Long-Term Liability
entitled Total OPEB Liability. The total OPEB Liability has a balance of $4.5M. ln 2017 an Actuarial
Analysis calculated NMWD's total actuarial liability at $5.6 million. The Retiree Medical Benefits cash fund
earns interest monthly. Accounting Standards require that the $5.6M reserve by fully funded in 20 years.

Drought Contingency (Rate Stabilization) Fund: ln August 2008, the Board directed staff to establish
this reserve with $135,000 from the Self-lnsured Workers'Compensation Fund for the Novato district to
draw upon during dry years. A threshold of 3.2 billion gallons of potable consumption was established as
a benchmark for 'normal' years. During any fiscal year that water sales volume exceeds 3.28G, the
incremental revenue generated is deposited into the Drought Contingency Reserve. ln those years when
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sales volume falls below the benchmark, funds are w¡thdrawn from the reserve to maintain the budgeted
revenue forecast. The goal is to build a reserve equal to 20% (currently $2,500,000) of budgeted annual
watercommodity sales. ln FY09 $50,335 was added to the reserve. The fund was fully depleted in FY10.

Maintenance Accrual Fund: Established in FYg'1 to provide a source of maintenance money for
replacement of treatment, storage, transmission and distribution facilities as they wear out. The annual
contribution from operating reserves was initially $200,000. Net polybutylene claim settlement proceeds
of $671,060 were closed into the fund in FYg3. ln FY94 the annual contribution was reduced to $100,000.
The District's goal is to build a reserve equal to 1O% of the net book value of Novato's existing plant,
currently $7.0M. Funds are borrowed from the Maintenance Accrual Fund to offset the shortfall in
unrestricted Cash & lnvestments. The fund balance does not accrue interest.

Operating Reserve Fund: This reserve, comprised of four months of budgeted operating expenditures
(less depreciation) as recommended by the District's financial advisors, serves to ensure adequate
working capital for operating, capital, and unanticipated cash flow needs that arise during the year. Funds
are borrowed from the operating Reserve Fund to offset the shortfall in unrestricted Cash & lnvestments.
The fund balance does not accrue interest.

Note3-EmploveeLoans
Housing Loans: The District's Employer Assisted Housing Program allows up to 9300,000 to be loaned
to an employee for a period of up to 15 years for the purchase of a home within the District service
territory that will enable the employee to respond rapidly to emergencies affecting the operation of the
District. Repayment is due upon sale, termination of employment, or other event as described in the
Program. lnterest on the loan is contingent upon and directly proportional to the appreciation in value
occurring on the purchased property. There are two employee-housing loans currently outstanding
totaling $525,000: a $250,000|oan dated March 2015, and a $275,000 loan dated June201B.

Note4*OtherLon Term Receivables

The District entered into a temporary water service agreement with Black Point Golf Links in lggg to
provide potable water for StoneTree Golf Course until recycled water was available. ln 2006 the District
received a $4.3 million 2O-year 2.4% SRF loan to finance the Deer lsland Recycled Water project, and
Black Point Partners agreed to pay the District $3,612,640 in bimonthly payments of $41 ,762 at2.4o/o
coinciding with StoneTree's water service payments. Bay Club took over ownership of StoneTree in 2Oi4
and pa¡d the loan in full in October2019.

ln 2015 the District entered into an agreement with Marin Country Club for their share of the pipeline
extension to provide recycled water for the Marin Country Club Golf Course. ln 2016 the District received
a $6.6 million 3O-year 1.0% SRF loan to finance the Recycled Water Central project, and Marin Country
Club agreed to pay the District $1,265,295 in bimonthly payments of $8,142 at 1.0% over 30 years for
their share of the pipeline extension. Marin Country Club also agreed to pay $430,463 of the District's
local share of the project in bimonthly payments af $8,242 over 10 years at 2.8%, which is the Novato
Potable Fund's weighted average cost of debt. The payments will coincide with Marin Country Club's
water service payments. Marin Country Club paid the 10 year loan in full in December 2018. The final
payment from Marin Country Club for ihe 30 year loan is due in November 2047.
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Note 5 - Depreciation

Assets are assigned a useful life based on consultations with the District Chief Engineer and a survey of
other water agencies. Depreciation in computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of
the various classes of property as follows:

Facilitv Life (years)
Aqueduct... 1 S0
Dam...... 100
Burtdings & Structures... 40
Mains.., S0
Pumping Equipment... 25
Water Treatment Equ¡pment.. 20
Storage & Transmission (16"+) Facifities... S0
Distribution Facilities (includes Pump Stations) . .... 50
Office, Laboratory, Construction & Shop Tools & Equ¡pment..... 10
Vehicles 1 ton or greater...... 10
All other vehicles...... 5
Sewer Mains.. 40
Sewer Pumps. .. 10

Note 6 - Capitalization Policv
The Government Finance Officers Association Guide for State and Locat Governmenfs recommends that
a capital¡zation policy incorporate a minimum threshotd of $5,000 and an estimated useful life of at least
two years. lt also cautions that federal grant and loan requirements prevent the use of capitalization
thresholds in excess of $5,000. Thus NMWD's capitatization threshold is $s,000.

Note 7 - Bond & Loan Servicino Schedule for Fiscal Year 2O19-2O2O

FY20

Service Area Descr¡ption
lssue
Date

Original
Rate Amount

Payment
Due

lnterest
Exoense

Pr¡nc¡pal
6130t20

Outstanding
Balance

Final
Pmt Pa¡d

1 Novato

2 Novato

3 Novato

3 RWTP

4 RW North

5 RW South

6 RWCenkal

7 WM Water

SRF Loan
STP

Bank
Loan

Marin

Chase
Loan

Bank

SRF Loan

SRF Loans (4)

SRF Loans (3)

SRF Loan

Bank
Loan

Marin

$21 5,953

$160,674

s117.284

$828,522

$321,368

$8,413,056

$4,523,948

$4.1 00.000

2004 2.39% $'16,528,850 7t1 &1t1

2011 3.54% $7,000,000 2Tthtmo

2O1B 2.69% $4,600,000 3t1 & 9t1

7t1t29

10t27t31

3t1t33

$4,302,560

$4,37s,60s

$5,361,952

$7,130,503

$1,000,000 2Tthlmo 10127131

West Marin Water Total

Novato Totat $493,91 1 $l ,409,890 $17,032,004

6120 6119127 $47,243 $226,124 $1,742,339

Varies Varies $82,086 $199,807 $2,9S7,33S

Varies Varies 988,890 $243,517 93,796,928

12t19 12t31t47 $69,125 $206,648 $6,705,816

Recycled Water Total $287,344 $876,096 515,202,418

000

2006

2013

2013

201 6

2.4o/o

2.2%

1 .0o/o

2012 354% 85 1737

1

$23,585 $47,173 $663,761

FY20 Total $804,840 $2. 333,159 $32,914,796

ln April 2004 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a 2.39% 2}-year loan for
reconstruction of the Stafford Water Treatment Plant. The project was completed in FY0g w¡th repair
of the Outlet Tower Sluice Gate. lnterest paid during construction totaled $1,636,378. The loan
covenants require an annual reserve fund contribution of $104,447 (10% of the annual debt service
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obligation) be deposited into the Marin County Treasury during each of the first ten years of the
repayment period. Debt service is funded 25% by Facility Reserve Charges. The first payment was
made in December 2009.

2. ln October 2011 Bank of Marin made a 2j-year 3 54yo (APR) loan of $B million to fund the District's
share of the Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Project. See Note 15 below, and note to loan g above.

3. ln March 2018 Chase Bank made a \j-year 2.69% (APR) loan of $4.6 million to fund the District's
Automated Meter lnformation system Project.

4. ln August 2006 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a 2.4% 2O-year loan of
$4,264,545 for construction of the Deer lsland Recycled Water Facility. With the addition of $38,015
in Construction Period lnterest, the loan principal totaled $4,302,560. The project was completed in
June 2007, and the first payment was made June 19, 2008.

5. ln July 201'1 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a series of four 2.6% 20-
year loans which totaled $4,375,605 for the Recycled Water North Service Area Expansion Project.
The projects were completed on October 31,2012, and the first payment was made in November of
2012.

6. ln March 2012 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a series of three 2.2o/o
2o-year loans totaling $5,361,952 for the Recycled Water South Service Area Expansion project. The
projects were completed on September 4, 2013, and the first payment was made in December of
2013.

7. ln May 2016 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a 1.Oo/o 30-year loan of
$7,1 30,503 for the Recycled Water Central Service Area Expansion. The project will be completed in
December 2017 , and the first payment will be made December 3'1 ,2018.

B. The Paradise Ranch Estates private water system was created by David Adams and Sons in lg52 to
provide water to 85 homes in the PRE subdivision located north of lnverness Park. Problems with
water quality and quantity developed and in 1969 the Marin County Health Department issued a boil-
water order to all customers of the company. ln 1972 the County declared a moratorium on issuance
of building permits. A suit by property owners resulted in an agreement reached in Marin Superior
Court in late 1978 directing Adams to finance a District feasibility study for the takeover of the system.
This culminated in formation of lmprovement District PRE-1 and an election authorizing issue of
$240,000 of 5o/o 4O-year revenue bonds, which, in conjunction with a $720,000 Farmérs Home
Administration grant, financed system rehabilitation. Service was provided from the point Reyes
System by installation of an additional well, expansion of the treatment plant, and a 6-inch pipeilne
connection at the lnverness Park pump station extending 1.6 miles along Sir Francis Drake Boulevard
to the newly reconstructed Paradise Ranch Estates distribution system. On 4122180 the USDA
purchased the revenue bond issue in its entirety.

9. ln 1981 work commenced on rehabilitating the Point Reyes lnverness Park water system. 18,865 feet
of pipeline was either replaced or installed, a 300,000-gallon tank was added in Point Reyes Station
and a 100,000-gallon tank was added in lnverness Park. Total cost of these improvements was
$820,01 5. A 72o/o g rant combined with a $21 7,800 5o/o 4}-year revenue bond acquir ed Bl28lB1 by the
Farmers Home Administration financed the project.

10. ln June 2012 the Board authorized reallocating $1 million of the Bank of Marin loan to West Marin
Water to repay Novato Water $223,000 owed for loans to fund Long Range lmprovement projects
and the remainder to fund the Solids Handling Facility at the Point Reyes Water Treatment plant.
See note to loan 2 above.

Note I - Unemolovment lnsurance Reserve

NMWD uses the "Reimbursable Method" of paying for Unemployment Costs. Under this method, the
District reimburses the State Employment Development Department for all unemployment benefits paid
on our behalf. The reserve is maintained at an amount equal to the higher of the average claim amount
paid over the last 5 years or 52 times the maximum weekly benefit amount (currently $4S0 x 52 =
$23,400)
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Note9-Pavroll Benefits

Payroll Benefits payable includes payroll taxes, vacation, sick, and holiday leave, Section 125 payments;
cancer, long term care and disability insurance premiums; union dues; and employee benefit fund.

Note 10 - lnterest Policv on lnter-District Loans

ln the event an improvement district expends all of its Undesignated Funds, it shall borrow funds from that
improvement district's Board Designated Fund reserves to meet ongoing requirements. ln the event an
improvement district expends all of its Board Designated Fund reserves, it may receive a loan from the
Novato lmprovement District in an amount sufficient to meet its ongoing requirements. Restricted Funds
shall not be used to finance ongoing normal operating expenses.

No interest shall be paid by an improvement district on funds borrowed from that improvement district's
Board Designated Fund reserves. lnterest on loans from the Novato lmprovement District shall be paid by
the recipient district to the Novato district based upon the outstanding loan balance at the close of the
previous accounting period. lnterest shall be calculated at the higher of. 1. The weighted average interest
rate of Novato improvement district debl(2.78o/o at 6/30/18); or 2.The average interest rate earned on the
District treasury since the close of the previous accounting period; plus $50 per month.

Note 11 - Bud Auomentations

Note 12 - Prior Period Adiustment

Note 13 - Explanation of Financial Statement Components

The District's financial statement is comprised of four components: 1) Statement of Net Position,2)
Sources and Uses of Funds Statement - All Service Areas Combined, 3) lncome Statement and Cash
Flow by Service Area, and 4) Notes to the Financial Statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

The Statement of Net Position (page 4) reports the District's assets and liabilities and provides
information about the nature and amount of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to the
District's creditors (liabilities). The difference between assets and liabilities is reported as net position.
Over time, increases or decreases in the fund balance may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating.

The Sources and Uses of Funds Statement - All Service Areas Combined (page B) compares fiscal
year-to-date performance against the Board approved annual budget - presented in the adopted budget
format. This Sources and Uses of Funds Statement varies from the income statement in that it includes
capital expenditures, debt principal repayment, connection fee revenue, and cash infusions from debt
issuance.

The lncome Statement and Gash Flow by Service Area (page 9) presents the net income (loss) for the
fiscal year-to-date (FYTD) period for each of the District's four service areas. The income and expenses
on this report are presented in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and
comply with Governmental Accounting Standards Board pronouncements. Accordingly, all income and
expenses are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. This statement measures the success of each service area's operations and
can be used to determine whether the service area has successfully recovered all costs through user fees
and other charges.

Also included at the bottom of page 9 is a statement of Cash Flow by Service Area. The primary purpose
of this statement is to reconcile in an informative manner the difference between the net income/(loss) for
period of each service area with the resultant change in cash balance that occurred over the same period.

Notes to the Financial Statements (page 3'l)provide a summary of significant accounting policies and
assumptions and other information of value to the financial statement reader.

Other Supplementary lnformation includes Detail lncome Statements presented in accordance with
GAAP for each of the four service areas (pages 10, 14, 16, 19). These statements present income and
expenditures in close detail for further analysis. Other supplementary schedules of note include the
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Vehicle Fleet Analysis (page 25), Equipment Expendrtures (page 22) and Capital lmprovement Project
Expenditures (page 27), which show outlays to date, compared with budget authority.

Note 14 nection Fee Transfers from Novato Water To led Water

The following Connection Fee (FRC) reserve amounts have been transferred to the Recycled Water fund

Recycled Water
FRC Transfers from Novato

North South Central

Expans¡on Local Share SRF RWF Expansion

NBì/I/RA Loan SRF LOAN

BPGL Loan
Repayment ctP Total

Transfer

Executed

FYOT

FYOB

FYO9

FYlO

FY1 1

FY12

FYI3
FY14

FY1 5

FY16

FY17

FYIs
FY,19

FY20

$1 33,659

$233,478

$236,291

$0

$26s,500

$723,525

$17,563

$0

s4,o24
($4,024)

$66,729

$362,524

$5,071 ,s'12

($2,1 68,75s)

$5,499

s29,725

$s0,478

$1 50,455

$75,198

$133,319

$1 15,883

$31 5,023

$63,035

$38,283

$102,U2
$1 94,636

$38,908

$6,966

922,795

$22,795

$22,795

$22,795

s22,795

$22,795

922,795

$22,795

$22,795

$22,795

s22,795

$22,795

$464,572

$500,529

$6'14,299

$61 4,299

$61 4,299

$6 f4,299

$890,072

$29,72s

973,273

9173,250

$231,652

$1 56,1 1 4

$637,656

$802,390

$1,550,200

$688,9 1 6

$806,6M

$1,230,940

$5,747,5 13

($1,248,922)

$1 33,659
7

$1,970,400

$ 1 ,550,200

$688,91 6

$806,664

$1,230,940

$5,747,51 3

($1,248,e22)

$1 33,659

$ t,175,098

($7,oBB)

$802,390

$'1,550,200

$688,91 6

$806,664

$1,230.940

$5,747,s1 3

($1,248,922)

$36,687

$1,084

$603,428 $1,006,589 $3,337,509 $1.314,751 $273,539 $4,662,656 ($1,046,471) $37,771 $10,189,771 $10,189,771 $10,189,771

Note Service Coveraoe Ratio

Debt Service Coverage Ratio is the ratio of net income/(loss) plus interest expense, depreciation, and

connect¡on fee revenue for the fiscal year to the sum of the fiscal year's principal and interest payments

on the District's total debt.

FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY2O

Net lncome/(Loss)

Depreciation

lnterest Expense

Connection Fees

Total Available For Debt Service

$91 ,719

$3,286,353

$807,035

$278,690

$597,600

$3,416,507

$757,935

$1,034,585

$1,860,520

$3,434,069

$833,197

$1,159,000

$3,528,000

$850,000

$733,000

$1,830,000

$3,486,000

$806,000

$340,000$1

94,463,797 $5,806,627 $7,583,186 $6,270,000 $6,462,000

Annual Debt Service $2,528,938 fiZ,527,O21 52,201,451 $3,129,000 $3,139,000

Debt Service Coverage Ratio 1.77 2.30 3.45 2.01 2.06
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Item #7

MEMORANDUM
To: Board of Directors August 14,2020

From: Drew Mclntyre, General Manager / Acting Ghief Engineer

Subject: Hamilton Village Water Facilities - APN: 157-970-03
r:\foldeÍs by job nou800 jobs\2841 hamilton villagsuS4l-bod memo.doc

RECOMMENDED AGTION: The Board approve authorization of this agreement.

FINANCIAL IMPACT: None: Developer Funded

Hamilton Village is located at 802 State Access Road, Novato (see attached map). The

project proposes to develop a 4.7- acre vacant parcel with 75 three story two to four-bedroom

townhomes in 17 buildings. The project will provide 15 units of affordable housing, with 8 units for

low income households andT units for moderate income households, The project also features a

1 .1-acre public use park area at the west end with a community garden, bocce ball courts, children's

play area and landscaping.

New Zone 1 water facilities required include 600 feet of 8-inch PVC main, 1,200 feet of

6-inch PVC and 300 feet of 4-inch PVC main and laterals, eighteen (18) 4-inch diameter steel

manifolds for services, 879 feet of f-inch PVC recycled water main, 5 new commercialfire hydrants,

seventy five (75) domestic 1-inch meters, one (1) 1-inch potable water meter for community

vegetable garden with a 1-inch RPP back flow prevention device, and one (1) 1.S-inch recycled

water meter for landscape irrigation.

The 8-inch recycled water main will be extended from State Access Road to the north west

corner of the parcel along the project's new private roads and will be connected to an existing out of

service 1O-inch ACP main that currently runs along the west end of the project parcel and

Homeward Bound parcels to the north. The existing out of service 1O-inch main within the parcel in

building areas will be properly abandoned in place. A credit for 460 ft ($55,41 1) of the total 879 ft of

the recycled water main will be applied to the project since the developerwill be installing additional

pipe length (460 feet) at the District's request instead of extending the recycled water main to the

end of the parcel (419 feet) along the State Access Road to the west.

Total water demand is 58 equivalent dwelling units (75 condominium units @ 0.6 EDUs, plus

13 EDUs for irrigation). The water service agreement will be recorded at the county to inform the

residents that private irrigation shall not be connected to the recycled water system. The project will

pay Facilities Reserve Charges (FRCs) forfifty-eight (58) EDUs. Since this project includes housing

units affordable to lower income households, payment of initial charges for up to fifteen (15) units

may be eligible to be deferred pursuant to Regulation 1.c. (5).

Sewer service is provided by the Novato Sanitary District.

Environmental Document Review

A Mitigated Negative Declaration was approved on July 14,2020.

RECOMMENDATION:

That the Board approve authorization of this agreement. MApproved

Date
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RESOLUTION NO.20-
AUTHORIZATION OF EXECUTION

OF
WATER SERVICE FACI LITI ES CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT

WITH
HAMILTON VILLAGE

BE lT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT that the

President and Secretary of this District be and they hereby are authorized and directed for and on

behalf of this District to execute that certain water service facilities construction agreement between

this District and City Ventures Homebuilding LLC, an applicant, providing forthe installation of water

distribution facilities to provide domestic water service to that certain real property known as 802

State Access Road , Novato, Marin County Assessor's Parcel Number 157-970-03, NOVATO,

CALIFORNIA.

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution duly and

regularly adopted by the Board of Directors of NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT at a regular

meeting of said Board held on the 18th day of August, 2020, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAINED

(sEAL) Theresa Kehoe, Secretary
North Marin Water District

r:\folders by job no\2800 lobsu841 hamilton villa96\2841 rêsolut¡on.doc



PART ONE
WATER SERVI CE FACI LITI ES CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT

FOR
HAMILTON VILLAGE

TH|S AGREEMENT, which consists of this Part One and Part Two, Standard Provisions,

attached hereto and a part hereof, is made and entered into aS of 

-,2020,

by and between NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT, herein called "District," and CITY VENTURES

HOMEBUILDING, A Limited Liability Company, herein called "Applicant."

WHEREA$ the Applicant, pursuant to District Regulation 1, the State of California

Subdivision Map Act and all applicable ordinances of the City of Novato and/or the County of Marin,

has pending before the City or County a conditionally approved Tentative Subdivision Map, Precise

Development Plan, Tentative Parcel Map or other land use application for the real property in the

District commonly known as Marin County Assessor's Parcel Number 157-970-03 and the project

known as HAMILTON VILLAGE, consisting of one (1) lot for residential development; and

WHEREAS, prior to final approval by the City or County of a Subdivision Map, Precise

Development Plan, Parcel Map or other land use application and recording of a final map for the

project, the Applicant shall enter into an agreement with the District and complete financial

arrangements for water service to each lot, unit or parcel of the project; and

WHEREAS, the Applicant is the owner of real property in the District commonly known as 802

State Access Road, Novato (Marin County Assessor's Parcel 157-970-03); and

WHEREA$ the proposed project's estimated average day peak month water demand is fifty

eight (58) EDUs; and

WHEREAS, the Applicant is entitled to a $55,411 credit for extending 8-inch recycled water

main 460 feet beyond the required extension for the project; and

NOW THEREFORE the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. The Applicant hereby applies to the District for water service to said real property and

project and shall comply with and be bound by all terms and conditions of this agreement, the District's

regulations, standards and specifications and shall construct or cause to be constructed the water

facilities required by the District to provide water service to the real property and project. Upon

acceptance of the completed water facilities, the District shall provide water service to said real

property and project in accordance with its regulations from time to time in effect.

r:\folders by job noUSOO jobs\284'1 hamilton villageu84l agre€ment.doc 1-1



2. Prior to the District issuing written certification to the City, County or State that financial

arrangements have been made for construction of the required water facilities, the Applicant shall

complete such arrangements with the District in accordance with Section 6 of this agreement.

3. Prior to release or delivery of any materials by the District or scheduling of either

construction inspection or installation of the facilities by the District, the Applicant shall:

a. deliver to the District vellum or mylar prints of any revised utility plans approved by

the City or County to enable the District to determine if any revisions to the final water facilities

construction drawings are required. The proposed facilities to be installed are shown on Drawing No.

1 2841.001 - 1 2841.004, entitled, "HAMILTON VILLAGE", a copy of which is attached, marked Exhibit

"4", and made a parl hereof. (For purposes of recording, Exhibit "4" is not attached but is on file in the

office of the District.)

b. grant or cause to be granted to the District without cost and in form satisfactory to the

District all easements and rights of way shown on Exhibit "4" or otherwise required by the District for

the facilities.

c. deliver to the District a written construction schedule to provide for timely withdrawal

of guaranteed funds for ordering of materials to be furnished by the District and scheduling of either

construction inspection or construction pursuant to Section 6 hereof.

4. Except for fire service, new water service shall be limited to the number and size of

services for which lnitial Charges are paid pursuant to this agreement. lnitial Charges for new

services, estimated District costs and estimated applicant installation costs are as follows:

lnitial Gharses
Metef ChafgeS (Domest¡c) (lncluded in material estimate).

Reimbursement Fund Charges (Domest¡c).

Metef Chafges (inc'd ¡n matl est) Potable - Community Garden

Reimbursement Fund Charges - community Garden..

Mgtef ChafgeS (included in material est¡mate) RW... .

Reimþursement Fund Charges - RW..

Facilities Reserve Charges (7s condos domestic).

Facilities Reserve Charges (irrisation 13 EDUS).

Credit for Extension of RW main lnoo n)... ...

75
75

1

1

1

0

f -inch @
1-inch @
1-inch @
1-inch @

1.5-inch @
1.S-inch @

75@
13@

$ 0.00
$ 420.00
$ 0.00
$ 1,055.00
$ 0.00
$ 0.00
$ 17,200.00
$ 28,600.00

$ o.oo
$ 31,500.00
$ 0.00
$ 1,055.00
$ 0.00
$ 0.00
$1,290,000.00
$ 371,800.00
$<55,411.00>

$1,638,944.00

$ 101,286.00
$ 44,382.00
$ 30,848.00
$ 10,019.00

Subtotal - lnitial Charges..

Estimated District Costs
District Furnished - Pipe, Fittings & Appurtenances
District Construction Labor.
Engineering & lnspection...
BUlk MatefiâlS lcrusneo rock, imported backfill, concrete, reinforcing steel, paving materials, ets)

r:\folders by job no\2800 jobs\2841 hamilton v¡llage\2841 agreêment.doc 1 -2



lnstallation Labor.
Contractor Furnished - Pipe Fittings & Appurtenances.
BUlk MatgfiâlS lcrusrreO rock, imported backfill, concrete, reinforcing steel, paving materials, etc.)

Subtotal -Estimated District Gosts $ 186,535.00

Estimated Aoplican t lnstallation Costs

Subtotal- Estimated Applicant Installation Costs...

g 244,720.00
$ 92,976.00
$ 75,158.00

$ 412,854.00

TOTAL ESTIMATED WATER FACILITIES COSTS. $2,238,333.00

(Bulk materials are such items as crushed rock, imported backfill, concrete, reinforcing steel, paving

materials, and the like, which are to be furnished by the contractor performing the work.)

5. ln addition to the lnitial Charges, Estimated District costs and Contributions, and Estimated

Applicant lnstallation costs set forth in Section 4 above, the Applicant shall furnish at no cost to the

District all PVC pipe (4-inch diameter and larger), valves and water line fittings shown on Exhibit "4" or

othenruise required by the District. The quantities, type and quality of said materials shall be approved

by the District prior to purchase by the Applicant and shall conform to District standards as stated and

shown on Specifications (15100 Valves, 15056 Pipeline Fittings, 15064 Polyvinyl Chloride (PVC)

Pressure Pipe) marked as Exhibit "8" attached hereto and made a part hereof and as othenruise may

be required. (For purposes of recording, Exhibit "8" is not attached but is on file in the office of the

District.) The cost of said materials is estimated to be $92,976. The District reserves the right to reject

and prohibit installation of all nonconforming materials furnished by the Applicant.

6, Financial Arrangements to be made by the Applicant shall consist of the following

lnitial Charqes and ated District Costs

The Applicant shall either pay to the District or provide a two (2) year irrevocable letter of

credit in form satisfactory to the District and payable at sight at a financial institution in the Novato area

the sum of lnitial Charges and Estimated District Costs as set forth in Section 4 hereof in the amount of

$1,825,479. lf the Applicant provides the two (2) year irrevocable letter of credit, the District shall

immediately draw down lnitial Charges and shall draw upon the remaining funds guaranteed by the

letter at any time the District deems appropriate to recover the Estimated District Costs which normally

will be at least thirty (30) days prior to the anticipated start of construction for the ordering of materials

to be furnished by the District. Pursuant to District Regulation 1(c)(5), this is an affordable housing

project and the aforementioned requirements may be modified to allow deferred payment of lnitial

Charges in the amount of $258,000 for 15 units for a period of up to two (2) years from the date of this

agreement or until the date of issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy by the City or County, whichever

rlfolders by job no\2800 jobs\2841 hamilton v¡llâgeu841 agreoment.doc 1 -3



occurs first, lf this option is exercised, the Applicant shall notify the District in writing and modify

payment in accordance with this paragraph and concurrently increase the amount of the financial

guarantees specified below by this amount. No water service meters will be installed to any of the lots

until full payment of this amount plus applicable interest is received.

Estimated ln llation Costs

AlternateNo. l-l llation Bv Aoolicant: lf the Applicant elects to install the facilities or

hire a private contractor to install the facilities, the Applicant shall provide financial guarantees

satisfactory to the District in the form of a pedormance bond in the amount of $412,854 conditioned

upon installation of the facilities and furnishing of bulk materials and a maintenance bond in the amount

of $103,214 conditioned upon payment of the cost of maintaining, repairing, or replacing the facilities

during the period of one (1) year following completion of all the facilities and acceptance by the District.

Performance and maintenance bonds shall be executed by a California admitted surety insurer with a

minimum A.M. Best rating of A-Vll. ln lieu of posting bonds, the Applicant may provide an irrevocable

letter or letters of credit payable at sight at a financial institution in the Novato area guaranteeing funds

in the same amounts. All financial guarantees shall be provided by the Applicant rather than the

contractor. The Applicant or contractor, whichever performs the work, shall be properly licensed

therefore by the State of California and shall not be objectionable to the District.

No. 2 - lnstallatio lf the Applicant requests the District to install the

facilities and the District consents to do so, the Applicant shall either pay to the District the total

Estimated lnstallation Costs set forth in Section 4 hereof in the amount of $412,854 or shall include

such amount in the irrevocable letter of credit provided for the lnitial Charges and Estimated District

Costs set forth first above. The District shall draw upon installation funds guaranteed by the letter at

any time the District deems appropriate which normally will be at least thirty (30) days prior to the

anticipated start of construction.

Whenever an irrevocable letter of credit is required by this agreement, the Applicant may

substitute a certificate of deposit at a financial institution in the Novato area provided the certificate

may be cashed at sight by the District at any time.

7. Water service through the facilities to be installed pursuant to this agreement will not be

furnished to any building unless the building is connected to a public sewer system or to a waste water

disposal system approved by all governmental agencies having regulatory jurisdiction. This restriction

shall not apply to temporary water service during construction.

r:\folders by job no\2800 jobs\2841 hamilton village\2841 agrsement.doc 1 -4



8. New construction in the District's Novato service area is required to be equipped with

high efficiency water conserving equipment and landscaping specified in Regulation 15 sections e. and

f.

L The District has determined that recycled water will be supplied for irrigation and

requires that the Applicant's irrigation system be designed to use recycled water per District regulations

and specifications. Provisions shall be made, as directed by the District, to provide connection of

Applicant's irrigation system to the recycled distribution main. No private residential irrigation plumbing

shall be connected to the recycled water system.

10. All estimated costs set forth in this agreement shall be subject to periodic review and

revision at the District's discretion. ln the event the Applicant has not completed financial

arrangements with the District in accordance with Section 6 hereof prior to expiration of six (6) months

from the date of this agreement, all lnitial Charges and estimated costs set forth in Section 4 hereof

shall be revised to reflect then current District charges and estimates. ln the event the Applicant has

not secured final land use approval for the project from the City of Novato or County of Marin, recorded

a final map and diligently commenced construction of improvements required by those agencies and

the District prior to expiration of one (1) year from the date of this agreement, the District may, at its

option, either retract financial certifications issued to City, County and State agencies and terminate

this agreement or require amendment of this agreement and review of all lnitial Charges and estimated

costs contained herein. The Applicant shall pay any balance due upon demand or furnish a guarantee

of such payment satisfactory to the District.

11. All extensions of time granted by the City of Novato or the County of Marin for the

Applicant to comply with conditions of land use approval or to construct improvements pursuant to a

subdivision improvement agreement shall require concurrent extensions of this agreement and shall be

cause for review and revision of all lnitial Charges and estimated costs set forth in Section 4 hereof.

The Applicant shall apply to the District for extension of this agreement prior to approval of the

Applicant's requests for such extensions by either the City of Novato or the County of Marin.

12. This agreement shall bind and benefit the successors and assigns of the parties hereto;

however, this agreement shall not be assigned by the Applicant without the prior written consent of the

District. Assignment shall be made only by a separate document prepared by the District at the

Applicant's written request.
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
"District"

NOTARIZED:

(sEAL)

(sEAL)

NOTES

Michael H. Joly, President Date

Theresa Kehoe, Secretary

CITY VENTURES HOMEBUILDING
A Limited Liability Company

"Applicant"

Phil Kerr, Chief Executive Officer

lf the Applicant executing this agreement is a corporation, a certified copy of the
bylaws or resolutions of the Board of Directors of said corporation authorizing
designated officers to execute this agreement shall be provided.

This agreement must be executed by the Applicant and delivered to the District
within thirly (30) days after it is authorized by the District's Board of Directors.
lf this agreement is not signed and returned within thirty days, it shall automatically
be withdrawn and void. lf thereafter a new agreement is requested, it shall
incorporate the lnitial Charges (connection fees) and cost estimates then in effect.

**ALL SIGNATURES MUST BE ACKNOWLEDGED BEFORE A NOTARY PUBLIC

r:\folders by job no!2800 jobs\2841 hamilton village\2841 agreement.doc 1 -6





Item #8

To:

From:

Subject:

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors August 14,2020

Drew Mclntyre, General Manager/Acting Chief Engineer

Renew Declaration of Local Emergency Related to COVID-19 Pandemic
t:\gm\bod misc 2O2o\renew cov¡d êmergency declaration #9 0B-1 8-20 doc

RECOMMENDED ACTION

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

Approve continuation of the local emergency resulting from
the COVID-19 pandemic as declared in District Resolution No
20-07

-$50,000 to-date (totalfiscal impacts are currently unknown)

On March 4,2020, the Governor of the State of California declared a State of Emergency as a

result of the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic. On March 13,2020, the President of the United

States declared a National Emergency as a result of the threat of COVID-19.

On March 16,2020, the County of Marin by Order of the Health Officer issued a Shelter in

Place Order limiting the travel of all county residents and ordering county businesses to cease all

non-essential activities and to take further actions as described in said Order through April 7, 2020.

The order limits activity, travel and business functions to most essential needs.

On March 16,2020 the General Manger, as the District's Emergency Manager activated the

District's Emergency Operations Plan.

On March 19,2020, Governor Newson issued Executive Order N-33-20 ordering all individuals

living in California to stay home at their place of residence, with certain exceptions for critical

services and other qualifying exceptions. This shelter-in-place order has no specified termination

date.

On March 31,2020, the County of Marin by Order of the Health Officer issued an extended

Shelter in Place Order through May 3, 2020 that is more restrictive than the original order. The new

order continues to provide an exception for the operations and maintenance of "Essential

lnfrastructure," which includes, but is not limited to, water, wastewater, and recycled water service.

Exemptions are also in place for Essential Government Functions, for certain "Minimum Basic

Operations," for emergency management functions, for certain narrowly prescribed "Essential

Business" functions, and for certain qualifying private construction, such as housing projects

meeting low-income needs.

On April 29, 2020, Marin County and the other six Bay Area Public Health Officers issued a

new order effective May 4,2020 through May 31,2020. Marin's public health order concerning use

of face coverings does not have an end date and will remain in place until fufther notice. Under the

May 4th Shelter-ln-Place order, construction activities, certain businesses that operate primarily



Memo re Continuation of Local Emergency
August 18,2020
Page 2 of 2

outdoors, and some outdoor activities will be allowed to resume with specific conditions'

On May 15,2020, Marin County issued a new order allowing a limited number of additional

businesses and activities to resume operations subject to specified conditions. ln par-ticular, office

spaceswereallowedtoresumeoperationonJune l,2020subjecttostrictcompliancewithspecific

Marin County requirements. This new order has no end date and is to remain in effect until

rescinded or superseded.

On July 13,2020 Governor Newson issued a statewide orderto dialback on recent loosening

of restrictions due to a significant increase in the number of confirmed cases. As a result, various

activities in Marin County were once again closed down, including: office space for non-essential

operations, indoor malls, hair salons/barbershops and indoor seating at restaurants.

On April 7th, the Board of Directors approved Resolution No. 20-07 proclaiming the existence

of a local emergency, granting the General Manager to take actions necessary for emergency

response due to the COVID-19 pandemic until the State of Emergency is terminated.

Since April 21 , 2020, the Board of Directors has, at every regular meeting, approved

continuation of the localemergency resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic as declared in District

Resolution No.20-07.

District emergency planning has been aggressively implemented since March 16,2020.

lnitially approximately 50% of the District's staff were physically separated as much as possible by

rotating shifts and having some employees work from home, but all critical operations needed to

maintain essential services continue. Relocation of additional staff back to the District buildings, and

certain other projects and activities has occurred and the District is now operating with 85% of staff

on-site or in the field. The District's COVID-19 Preparedness and Response Plan is now finalized

and training has been completed with staff. Additional physical work space modifications are

ongoing and walk-in customer service is still suspended. A summary of key emergency actions

taken and current estimated costs is provided in Attachment 1'

As the COVID-19 emergency continues in our service area, Staff is requesting the Board find

that there still exists a need to continue the State of Emergency reflected by Resolution No. 20-07.

Approve continuation of the local emergency resulting from the COVID-'I9 pandemic as

declared in District Resolution No. 20-07.

RECOMMENDED ACTION



Emergency Actions Summa rY

Emergency Operations Team Actions

¡ Water treatment plants have been closed to all non-essential staff and the public; expanded social

distancing and safety measures for essential plant staff.

o public lobby in the District Administration building has been closed and customers have been

provided with alternative methods for communicating with District staff,

o Developed guidelines for social distancing in the office and in the field; distributed guidance to all

employees and posted social distancing protocol at facility entrances.

o Developed an initial rotational schedule for operations and maintenance staff to reduce staffing

density on-site and minimize the number of employees on duty while completing essential work'

(This approach reduced productivity, but improved the likelihood of healthy backup staff.)

o During initial response, shifted -50 percent of employees to rotating schedule and/or rotating

work.

o procured additional District cell phones for field staff to have better access to District

communications and direct contact with supervisors.

¡ Disinfected District vehicles and reconfigured vehicle assignments to accommodate single

occupancy to allow for social distancing, including re-deployment of vehicles scheduled for

a uction

o Suspended discretional water service turn-offs for the duration of the emergency declaration'

o Continuing coordination with local agency, county and state contracts to share information and

implement best practices.

o participating in twice weekly multi agency coordination calls through Marin County Office of

Emergency Services (OES).

o Updating public website, messaging and social media posts as necessary including messages on

suspension of walk-in services and water safety and reliability.

o Spring 2O2O Waterline newsletter, direct mailed to all customers, included COVID-19 messaging

with information on water safety and reliability.

¡ Posted magnetic signage on vehicles to inform public to respect distancing around crews.

o lssued guidance on face coverings in compliance with Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

and County recommendations; revised to address April 29 County order generally requiring

members of the public and workers to wear face coverings.

c Developed and rolled out an employee self-assessment screening questionnaire for use by any

District employee or vendor prior to entering a District workspace; self-assessment questions are

reviewed and updated as needed.

o Continue to procure necessary face coverings and personal protective equipment, including

disposable masks, face covering and N95 equivalent masks.

¡ Tracking customer delinquency and comparing to last year to asses potential revenue impacts'

Attachment 1-



Emergency Actíons Summary
Page 2

r Developing a living "lessons learned" document.

o lnstalled hand disinfecting stations at District facilities.

o Expanded use of District's on-call requirements to ensure construction crew staff maintain their

work "bubbles" to ensure adequate back-up staff availability.

o lncreased janitorial services to include disinfection of frequently touched areas (door handles,

knobs, etc.).

General Manager Authorizations

Extended vacation accrual maximums from July I,2O2O to August 31,2020.

Extended tY 2OI9/20 vision insurance reimbursement eligibility from July 1to August 31,2020.

a



Emergency Actions Summary
Page 3

COVID Cost Summary

PROCUREMENT EXPENSES

I nternal Labor Expenses

lncreased on-call labor costs -524,000 to-date (-$2,L00/week)

Water Bill Delinquency lmpactg

Still under evaluation

Vendor
Purchases

Procurement Type Total Purchase Order Amount Date

Durkin Signs &
Graphics

Magnetic "SociaI Distance"
Signs

5r,077 411.4/2020

Winzer
Corporation

Surgical Masks (2,000) $3,751 4/Ts/2020

Boucher Law COVID Protection Plan $3,250 s/26/2020

JCA

Construction
Misc. Office Social

Distancing Modifications
$!2,427 6l30/2020

Winzer
Corporation

Surgical Masks (2,000) S 1,573 716/2020

Novato Glass Plexiglass $3,969 6/s/2020

Total
Procurement
Amount To-

Date
526,047
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Item #9

*DRAFT Minutes of Water Advisory Committee and Technical Advisory Committee
Virtual Meeting - No Physical Location

August 3,2020

Attendees Easter Ledesma, City of Santa Rosa
Gina Perez, City of Santa Rosa
Susan Harvey, City of Cotati
Dave King, City of Petaluma
Jake Mackenzie, City of Rohnert Park
Dick Dowd, City of Santa Rosa
Jack Baker, North Marin Water District
Sam Salmon, Town of Windsor
Jon Foreman, Valley of The Moon Water District
Larry Russell, Marin MunicipalWater District
Craig Scott, City of Cotati
Kent Carothers, City of Petaluma
Mary Grace Pawson, City of Rohnert Park
Jennifer Burke, City of Santa Rosa
Colleen Ferguson, City of Sonoma
Drew Mclntyre, Norlh Marin Water District
Sandi Potter, Town of Windsor
Matt Fullner, Valley of The Moon Water District
Paul Sellier, Marin MunicipalWater District

Staff/Alternates: David Rabbitt, SCWA Liaison
Grant Davis, SCWA
Pam Jeane, SCWA
Jay Jasperse, SCWA
Lynne Roselli, SCWA
Don Seymour, SCWA
Brad Sherwood, SCWA
Paul Piazza, SCWA
Steven Hancock, SCWA
Michael Thompson, SCWA
Peter Martin, City of Santa Rosa
Colin Close, City of Santa Rosa
Chelsea Thompson, City of Petaluma
Larry Russell, Marin Municipal Water District
James Grossi, North Marin Water District

Public Bob Anderson, United Wine Growers
David Keller, FOER
Brittany Bober
Mark Millan, Data lnstincts

Margaret DiGenova, California American Water

1. Check-in
Susan Harvey, WAC Chair, called the meeting to order at 9:03 a.m

2. Public Comments
No public comments

I
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from the 2 OW a Minute
seconded by Jake Mackenzie, CitY of
tention from Dick Dowd, City of Santa

Rosa

4 Recao the Julv 13.202O TAC Meetino and Anoroval of Minutes ITAC)

Moved by Jennifer Burke, City of Santa Rosa, seconded by Sandi Potter, Town of

Windsor; unanimouslY aPProved.

5. Water Su Coordination Counci l-Julv 21 .2020 - Susan Harvey, WAC Chair

The Water Supply Coordination Council met remotely July 21. Went through the agenda

for the wAc/TAC August 3 meeting and had a lot of discussion.

6. Water Supply Conditions and Temporary Urgency Change Order

Don Seymour, SCWA.

July 28 State Water Resources Control Board lssued an order approving Temporary

Urgency Change Petition and it contains terms for fisheries and water quality protection

as well as water conservation. Most of the terms have reporting requirements that will be

due by next April. ln response to the order being issued, Sonoma Water reduced releases

at Coyote Valley Dam by 20 cfs last week, storage at Lake Mendocino is currently 53,500-

acre it about 2,-000-acre ft above target water supply storage levels that were developed

by SCWA staff. The flow at Healdsburg in the Upper Russian River is 76 cfs and at

H-acienda Bridge in the Lower Russian River is 91cfs. Both locations are at or about

minimum stream flow requirements for Sonoma Water obligations. Lake Sonoma is

currently at 196,000-acre feet. Sonoma Water is currently releasing 120 cfs at Warm

Springs Dam.

7. Sonoma Marin Saving Water Parlnership (ÏAC)

a.2O2O Water Production Relative to 2Q13 Benchmark

Drew Mclntyre, North Marin Water District.
Healdsburg data was incorrect on the hand out, June usage was 10% below and

a corrected handout will be posted on the Sonoma Water's website. Also included

is a chart of historical water use over the last two decades. Water Contractor

customers have made great strides in reducing per capita water use over the years

well before 2013.

b.2020 Urban Water Management Plan Update
Colin Close, City of Santa Rosa.

Urban Water Management Plan update is required every 5 years by Urban Water

Retailers. The Plan documents each agency's long{erm plan to make sure

adequate water is available today and into the future. The assessments are on

water availability and demands looking out at least 20 years as required by the

State. There are many new requirements and regulations that resulted from the

drought in 2013. This is a critical document about effective water management.
t¡e èight Water Contractors and MMWD have worked together throughout the
years to work on sections of the UWMP analysis as a team. One consultant was

hired to run demand analysis and conservation analysis using common

methodology so when it is submitted to Sonoma Water it is a unified approach.
The process is two months behind schedule due to Covid impacts. EKI has

2

J
Moved by Jack Baker, North Marin Water District,

Rohnert Park; unanimously approved with one abs
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received everyone'S data now and have developed preliminary demand
projections. EKI will work on final demand projections and they should be sent in

a couple of weeks. Final plans are due to the State by July 1 ,2021'

c. SummerAd Campaign. Paul Piazza, SCWA.

Every year the parlnership undertakes a water use efficiency multimedia campaign

from June-Sept which coincides with higher water usage months. The Campaign
includes radio messages, online video placements on streaming sites as well as

still ads for digital and print media. This year was unique creating a message during

the pandemiC. Sonoma Water created the still ads to provide a visible reminder of

the value and imporlance of water and the role saving water means for long term

availability of water supply. The video campaign on reinforcing correct summer
watering practicing and irrigation system maintenance and broadcast radio

focused on the increase interest of growing their own food and DYI projects with
summer watering, saving money with irrigation, and irrigation maintenance. By the
numbers, about 275,OOO impressions are being made monthly on a variety of

different online sites and trusted local news sources. The video went out on

connect tv and streaming radio.

Brad Sherwood, SCWA.

ln light of the TUCP, the SCWA Board of Directors wanted to not only ask the
community about using water wisely but also to educate them about the water
system. They starled a regional radio campaign with the goal to educate the
community about where their water comes from and especially about importance
of Lake Mendocino why it is important to protect our fish species through a positive

voice and positive message. After Mr. Sherwood's discussion many of the Water
Contractors spoke individually about additionalwater use efficiency measures their
agencies were implementing during these Dry Year conditions.

Public comments:
Margaret DiGenova California American Water- their water conservation effotls
include bill inserts and watching for leaks in the system, they also have a pilot

program within their company with Flume. lt is a device that customers can attach
to their meter with Velcro and see real time meter usage and see if there is a leak.

There is a rebate for their customers, and customers can purchase it at a lower
cost.

8. Biological Opinion Status Update
Pam Jeane, SCWA
Fish Flow: Draft EIR- Sonoma Water staff anticipate recirculation of the draft EIR spring

of 2021.

Dry Creek Habitat Enhancement: Contractor Hanford is starting to mobilize for the last of
first three miles of construction work at Dry Creek. They will also do maintenance work in
terms of fixing a few things that got disturbed during high flows last year. Also, Sonoma
Water continues to make progress with Corps of Engineers on miles lV, V and Vl. Designs
are advancing 90-99% at this point and staff have a big emphasis on right of way and

acquiring easements.

Fish Monitoring: They are finished with the downstream migrant trapping. They are now

sampling for young Coho salmon and steelhead in tributaries. ln Dry Creek they are trying

3
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to determine whether fish are using the areas that were rehabilitated by installing devices
and tagging fish.

Russian River Estuary Management Project: We are currently in the management period;

it goes from May 15-October 15. The river mouth is currently open, and Sonoma Water
finalized their adaptive management plan back in May.
lnterim flow changes: The Order expires on December 27 ,2020. lnformation on petitions

on Sonoma Water's website among additional documents.

9. Potter Valley Relicensing Update
Pam Jeane, SCWA

ln May, the Planning Agreement Partners submitted the feasibility study report to the
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission. The comment period ended in June and was
meant for people to comment on the study plans that were proposed in the report.
Hundreds of comment letters were filed but they were mostly opinions about what was
being proposed and not comments on the study plans. Three dozen comment letters did
address the study plans. There has not been a formal acceptance of the Report as it is
not an official part of the FERC filing process. The PAP received a new process plan and
schedule dated June 3 for the integrated Licensing Process. The first order is to file report
with FERC in mid-september which is an interim study report. lntegrated Licensing
Process consultant is currently being sought out and PAPs are negotiating with one of the
proposed teams on scope of work, schedule and budget. Sonoma water hopes in the next
week or so to have it finalized. Work groups continue to work and some that are on hiatus
will start up again and the formation of regional entity and division with partners workgroup
will start up again soon. lnformation and documentations are available at the website
twobasinsolution.org

Public Comments:
Mark Millan, Data lnstincts shared that the twobasinsoltuion.org has the schedule posted
with key milestones and meetings from August 2020 through April 2022.

David Keller, FOER. Asked Pam to comment on the what seemed like recalcitrance in
Mendocino County for moving ahead with what has been agreed to get the core of the
two-basin solution, and their reluctance to agree to the core principles. Pam stated she
hasn't been privy to the presentations that David is referring to but the working relationship
has been great and helpful. David Keller noted he was referring to a column posted in the
Ukiah Daily General by Devin Jones from Farm Bureau doubting workability of the two*
basin solution.

10. Approve- Regional Water Supply Resiliency Study Work Plan (Phase 1) (TAC)
Drew Mclntyre, North Marin Water District

TAC has been involved with the workplan development over the last 6-8 months. The
workplan was prepared by the consultant Jacobs. The workplan wraps up the initial scope
of work. TAC has seen this document multiple times, most recently in both May and July
meetings. After this document is approved the project will move into phase 2 and Sonoma
waterwill start the work with Jacobs late this summer and will be an 18-month duration.
Phase 2 will build upon the initial input and develop, evaluate and prioritize various
resiliency options to improve overall coordination between the water contractors and
agency.

Agenda item 10 approved with no objections from the TAC

4
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11. Approve- Emergency Training & Coordination Program (TAC)

Drew Mclntyre, North Marin Water District

TAC has had the oppoÉunity to review and comment on this item multiple times, it is now

ready to be finalized and approved. This document was generated based upon 2019

Sonoma County Civil Grand Jury report and one of the findings was the coordination

between SCWA and contractors could be improved by increasing training and mutual aid

coordination. A subcommittee has been formed that includes a representative from each

of the water contractors and Sonoma Water with Steven Hancock, SCWA as the Chair.

Some of the goals are to enhance the working relationship between water contractors and

the water agency in terms of emergency coordination, develop mutual aid processes and

increase regional readiness and response by practicing field command and coordination.

Puþlic Comments:
Margaret DiGenova- California American Water would like to participate in what the

committee comes up with.

Agenda item 11 approved with no objections from the TAC

12. Covid-19 Training & Coordination
Drew Mclntyre, North Marin Water District

Technical staff from the water contractors meet regularly on the phone regarding Covid-
1g. They hold weekly calls with a regular agenda covering items such as: mutual aid,

consistent messaging, sharing information on availability of PPE and safety standards.
Drew wanted to recognize Sonoma Water for coordinating these calls.

Public comments:
Mark Millan, Data lnstincts. Serves on Water Reuse Board of Trustees for state of
California. Mark spoke on Covid-19 through sewage surveillance. Some agencies are

analyzing this and gathering information. This could be useful as the epidemic leaves a
community, Mark asked if this group has discussed sewage surveillance now or for the
future as it evolves? Mark wanted to mention it for general awareness. Jennifer Burke,

City of Santa Rosa reported that the City of Santa Rosa did offer to participate in studies
early on but they were completely full. She shared that the City of Santa Rosa is more
than happy to provide samples and data, but the study would have to be done by some
other agency

13. SCWA Government Affairs Update
Grant Davis and Brad Sherwood, SCWA

Brad Shen¡uood- Sonoma Water is following the development of economic stimulus
proposal in Sacramento that relies on future tax vouchers. This could potentially provide

economic relief and help water resource programs as well. Regarding AQPI-Advanced
Quantitative Precipitation lnformation Program, Sonoma Water is moving fonryard with
intense legislative outreach to develop ongoing operation funding for 5 new radar systems
to better detect precipitation in atmospheric rivers. On the federal side, Sonoma Water
continues to work with OMB administrators on various appropriation requests associated
with Army Corps of Engineers. Also, Sonoma Water staff are following Congressman
Huffman's office regarding the Water Resources Development Act which will most likely
go to a vote next year.

5
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14. lntegrated Regional Water Management Plan(s) Update
Grant Davis, SCWA.

The AQPI project comes out of Bay Area and radars are very important for the bay area
in response and planning accurately. There will be leadership changes at the North Coast
Resource Partnership. The current chair ls relinquishing the Chair later this year. There
will be additional leadership required. Jake McKenzie noted Judy Morris has done a great
job over the years and is sorry she is leaving and would hope at some point in time it would
be acknowledged.

15. ltems for Next Agenda (November 2, 2020 WAC/TAC Meeting)
Report on Covid-19 Actions
PSPS Update

16. Check out
Meeting adjourned at 11'.26 am

6
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Item #10
DISBURSEMENTS . DATED AUGUST 6, 2O2O

Date Prepared 8l3l2O

The following demands made against the District are listed for approval and authorization for payment in accordance
with Section 31302 of the California Water Code, being a part of the California Water District Law:

Seo Pavable To For Amount

P/R*

90304.

90305.

90306.

90301 "

90302* State of California

90303* US Bank Card

Asbury Environmental Services

Athens Administrators

Autoworld

Badger Meter

Bearings & Hydraulics

Borges & Mahoney

Carpenter Rigging & Supply

Cunningham, Bruce & Kimberly

Diesel Direct West

10 Direct Line

Net Payroll PPE7l31l20

Federal & FICA Taxes PPE7l31l2j

State Taxes & SDI PPE7l31l2j

Pension Contribution PPE 7131120

August Health lnsurance Premium (Employer
47,263, Retirees $12,035 & Employee
Contribution $10,287)

EDD Benefit Charges (41 1 120-6130120)

AWWA Webinar "Corrosion Control & Drinking
Water Regulations" (Mclntyre) ($80), Zoom for
Board Meetings ($1S¡, Porta-Potty Rental (1
month) ($aOZ¡ & Chromebook ($243)

Used Oil Filter & Debris Disposal

July Replenishment for Check Written

Service Parts for STP Boat

1.5" Meter Registers (2)

Axle Lube Caps (2)

Chlorine lnjectors (2) (STP)

Wire Rope (500')

Refund Overpayment on Closed Account

Fuel for PSPS Tank @ PRTP (300 gal)
($1 ,ggt ), Fuel for STP Generator (300 gal)
($1 ,390), Diesel (a30 gal) ($1 ,3t 2) & Gasoline
(498 gal) ($1,466)

August Telephone Answering Service

Employees

lnternal Revenue Service

State of California

CaIPERS

CalPERs

9148,378.42

65,425.38

14,072.10

38,696.14

69,585.21

7,079.83

697.62

446.42

79.82

54,17

54.90

4.23

376.74

259.69

68.1 8

5,559.48

239.98

1

2

o

4

5

b

7

B

I

*Prepaid Page 1 of 5 Disbursements - Dated August 6,2020



Seq Payable To For Amount

16

17

1B

20

11 Environmental Collaborative

12 Environmental Science Assoc

13 Filley, Kathryn

Fishman Supply

Fisher Scientific

GHA Technologies

Ghazzagh, Farzad

GHD

14

15

19 Gockel, Keith - Trustee

Goodpaster, Stacie

21 Grady, Ken

22 Grainger

23 Guerrero Fencing

Guillen, Gishela & Harold

Harrington Plastics

Prog Pymt#1: Biological & Wetland Review-
O.M. Wastewater Treatment & Storage Pond
Repair ($2,350) (Balance Remaining on
Contract $17,650) Prog Pymt#2: Biological
Consulting-Old Ranch Road Tank Replacement
Project ($6,697) (Balance Remaining on
Contract $10,953)

Prog Pymt#9: NMWD San Mateo Tank
Permitting Assistant (Balance Remaining on
Contract $43,852)

Refund Overpayment of Closed Account

Safety Vests (10)

Sodium Standard (Lab)

Cell Modems for SCADA Network (2)

Novato "Cash for Grass" Rebate Program

Prog Pymt#24: \Nater Tank PRE 4A
Replacement (Balance Remaining on Contract
$4,238.00)

Refund Overpayment on Closed Account

Exp Reimb: AWWA Membership (Budget $280)
(et2o-8t21)

Membranes & Electrolyte Solutions for RWF
Chlorine Analyzers

Lockbox for Fleet Keys ($207), Disposable
Gloves (2,000) ($+Zl), Miter Saw ($389),
Smoke & Carbon Monoxide Detectors ($2SO¡,
Base Molding for Front Office ($208), Light
Cover for Front Office ($2ZO¡, Pressure Washer
Parts ($123), Belt Barrier ($280) &
Miscellaneous Maintenance Parts & Supplies

Remove & Replace Old Damaged Fence
Around District Owned Lot @ End of Vineyard
Road (4,470 linear feet)

Refund Overpayment on Closed Account

Chlorine Dioxide pH Probe (STP)

9,047.47

8,465.89

38.35

97.11

68.81

762.58

290.00

3,597.25

40.93

286.00

82.22

3,182.66

35,453.00

139.08

558.96

24

25

*Prepaid Page 2 of 5 Disbursements - Dated August 6,2020



Seq Pavable To For Amount

26

3'1 Marin Color Service

Marin County Tax Collector

Mclellan, WK

McPhail Fuel

Mutual of Omaha

Nationwide Retirement Solution

Novato Sanitary District

On Line Resource

O'Reilly Auto Parts

Pace Supply

Pape Machinery

Parkinson Accounting Systems

Patel, Dig

Point Blue Conservation Science

Gaskets (2) (STP)

Novato "Washer Rebate" Program

Quarterly Maintenance on Engineering
Copier/Scanner ($447) & Maintenance on
Engineering Canon lmage Plotter ($168)
Exp Reimb: Safety Boots

Deferred Compensation PPE 7131120

Primer (5 gal)

FY21 Possessory lnterest Tax Bill (25 Giacomini
Rd) (7t1t2j-6t30t21)

Misc Paving

Propane for O.M. Generator (242 gal)

August Group Life lnsurance Premium

Deferred Compensation PPE 7131120

Treatment & Disposal of Discharge from SïP

Refund Overpayment on Closed Account

Fittings ('13 Vac Excavator & ïrailer)

Elbow ($1SZ¡, Fire Check Assembly ($1 ,621),
Valves (6) ($1 ,797), Gaskets (160) ($467),
Couplings (60) ($1,595), Connection Rings
(100) ($312) Epoxy Double Saddle Strap ($s0¡,
Pipe (220') ($9ZO¡, Bushings (7), Plugs (20)
($SA¡, Meter Spuds (40) ($425), Tracer Wire
(1,000') ($3to¡, Adaptors (4) ($283), Flange
Spool ($2+z¡ & Service Saddles (15) ($670)

Service Parts ('04 Backhoe &'09 JD Backhoe)

Annual Maintenance on Accounting Software
(81 1 120-7 131 /21 ) (Budget $7,600)

Refund Overpayment on Closed Account

Prog Pymt#1: Old Ranch Road Northern
Spotted Owl Surveys (Balance Remaining on
Contract $1,747)

Hopkins Technical Products

Hourigan, Kelly

lntellaprint Systems

LeBrun, Kent

Lincoln Life

5.46

50.00

614.50
184.46

8,343.03

91.45

626.27

16,331.44

766.29

977.25

920.00

368.63

500.00

9.79

8,729.66

110.24

7,370.00

14.84

2,882.61

27

28

29

30

32

33

34

35

36

37

3B

39

40

41

42

43

44

*Prepaid Page 3 of 5 Disbursements - Dated August 6,2020



Seq Pavable To For Amount

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

45

46

47

4B

6'1

62

63

64

Pollard Water

Prunuske Chatham

Quincy Compressor

R&B

Recology Sonoma Marin

Scott Technology Group

Searles, Sharon & Stanley

Sigma Pneumatics

Soiland

Sonoma County Water Agency

Sonoma County Water Agency

Sorensen, Michelle

S-Scapes

Staples Business Credit

Synectic Technologies

Thatcher of California

Thomas Scientific

Tompkins, Kristen

Uline

Tube Rounder

Refund Overpayment on Closed Account

Parts for STP Compressor

Corp Stop & Coupling, Tees (5) ($171), Unions
(2), Valves (2) ($1 ,184), Hydrant Extensions
($ZO¡, Nipples (16) ($155), Flange & Elbows
(10) ($120)

July Trash Removal

July Monthly Maintenance on Engineering
Copier (7 121 120-8120120)

Printer ($217), Toner ($8S¡, Banker Boxes (60)
($1ZS¡, Frames (6) ($87) & Misc Office Supplies
($22+¡

Quafterly Phone System Maintenance

Ferric Chloride (9 tons) ($7,347) & Chlorine
(4,000 lbs) ($3,766) Less Credit for Cylinder
Return (-$2,000) (STP)

Phosphate Buffer (Lab)

Refund Overpayment on Open Account

Zip Ties for Fire Service (200)

Annual Membership (Arendell) (7 120-6121)

Refund Overpayment on Closed Account 34.52

Jack Hammer Handles (2) 116.16

Asphalt Recycling (42 tons) 417.40

2019 Revenue Bonds-Cash Deposit
Restructured Agreement for Water Supply 1,106,216.00

Conservation SupportProgram (411120-6130120) 2,165.97

Refund Overpayment on Closed Account 147.51

Annual Backflow Testing (91) 5,460.00

99.55

94.17

508.79

1,850.69

510.80

169.91

791.96

446.70

9,1 13.40

77.06

693.00

201.44

5,120.62

59

60

.Prepaid

Underground Service Aleft
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65

66

Univar

USA BlueBook

US Postal Service

Verizon Wireless

VWR lnternational

Jerry & Don's Yager Pump &
Well Service

Zenith lnsurance

Sodium Hypochlorite (200 gal) (PRTP)

Forehead Scanner Thermometer ($109), Sealed
Triode ($2+S¡ & Parts for Sludge Polymer Pump
($276) (srP)

Meter Postage

Cellular Charges: Data ($1,268), Airtime ($1eO¡

& iPads for Asset Management ($200)

Lauryle Tryptose Broth ($207) & Sodium
Standard (Lab)

Potable Water Booster Pump Pressure Tanks
for STP

AnnualWorkers Comp Premium Audit
Adjustment
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS

465.02

630.16

1,000.00

1,654.07

264.50

2,414.63

2,261.00

_t],605,00e.q2_

67

68

69

70

71

The foregoing payroll and accounts payable vouchers totaling $1,605,009.87 are hereby approved and

authorized for payment.

^hu[¡o bu,,<- S /S/ &o ao
{Jióitoi-conirotter Date
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November 3, 2020 - Status of Candidates who have
Taken Out Papers for Office
Lynda RobeÊs, Reg¡strar ofvoters, Elections

Statewide General Election - LII 03 l2O2O

Seats Open
Number of Candidates
\ilho Took Papers

1

Number of Candidates
\ilho Filed Papers

11

Candidates

Name/
Occupøtíon

Declaration
of
Candidacy
Filed

Candidate
Statement
Filed

JACK BAKER**
Director, North Marin llater District

71t712020 71r712020

Seats Open
Number of Candidates
\üho Took Papers

I

Number of Candidates
Who Filed Papers

11

Candidates

Name/
Occupøtìon

Declaration
of
Candidacy
Filed

81712020

Candidate
Statement
Filed

MICHAEL H. JOLY**
Incumbent

t:\bod\elect¡ons\boã rd va6ncy 2020\status of @ nd¡dates.docx



November 3, 2020 - Status of Candidates who have

Taken Out Papers for Office
Lynda Roberts, Reg¡strar of Voters' Elect¡ons

Statewide General Election - LÍ.IO3 2020

Seats Open
Number of Candidates
\ilho Took Papers

Number of Candidates
Who F'iled Papers

1I I

Candidates

Name/
Occupøtion

Declaration
of
Candidacy
Filed

7t1612020

Candidate
Statement
Filed

71t612020STEPHEN PETTERLE**
Incumbent

t\bod\elect¡ons\board vaøncy 2020\status of cand¡dates.docx



DWR head: SGMAwill bring more
certainty to farmers
08/A3/20 12:26 PM &

Karla Nemeth, who directs the Department of Water Resources, said the
implementation of the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) beginning
this year will provide "agriculture with more certainty, even around surface water
supplies." Nemeth was delivering a keynote talk'last week at the summer conference for
the Association of California Water Agencies.

She recognized the "economic dislocation" associated with implementing the act's local
basin plans. A report earlier this year found that SGMA could cost the San Joaquin
Valley as much as $7 billion every year. Yet Nemeth emphasized that "the cost of doing
nothino in the context'of groundwater management will be lar higher, and that
uncertainty will be far greater."

She explained that the plans being developed for SGMA will "address a long-standing
need to connect surface water supplies with how we manage our groundwater basins."
They will also provide the state with focused regional perspectives on the economic
impacts to both farming and communities.

On Delta outflow: Nemeth added that the administration is still pursuing voluntary
agreements as another way to add more certainty to agricultural water customers. DWR
is also working closely with the coalition behind the Water BluçSrint folthe $an-.J-gaquin

Valley, particularly on coordinating groundwater recharge projects, she said.

On water infrastructure: While the administration is no longer supporting a climate
resilience bond this year, Nemeth said it is looking at ballot initiatives for later
elections. One selling point:

"Prop. 1 , which at $7.1 billion, .will have leveraged $21 billion in investments in water in

California," she said. "That math is very important to make our case, not only in the
Legislature, but to the voting public."



Goronavirus shutdown causes new risk
at CDC: Legionnaire's disease
By MaEqie. Fox, CNN
Updated 7:08 AM ET, Fri August 7,2020

(CNN)The US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention says it has closed several

Ou¡tO¡ngi it leases in Atlanta because Leoionella bacteria have been found in their water
systems .. bacteria that likely grew because of the prolonged pandemic shutdown.

It's a problem that people across the country need to be on the lookout for, the CDC says.

The bacteria, which can cause deadly pneumonia, grow in warm or stagnant water.

Death toll rises after a Leqionnaires'disease outbreak in North Carolina

The plumbing in buildings that have been closed for months because of the coronavirus
pandemic could provide a perfect breeding ground for Legionella and other waterborne
pathogens, the CDC cautions.

It even happened to the CDC itself.

"During the recent closures at our leased space in Atlanta, working through the General
Services Administration (GSA), CDC directed the landlord to take protective actions," the
CDC said in a statementto CNN.

Sheraton Atlanta hotel cleared to reopen after outbreak of Leoionnaires' disease

L



"Despite their best efforts, CDC has been notified that Legionella, which can cause
Legionnaires' Disease, is present in a cooling tower as well as in some water sources in the
buildings. Out of an abundance of caution, we have closed these. buildings until successful
remediation is complete."

Legionella bacteria are common in water everywhere. They're usua lly only a problem when
the water gets aerosolized and people breathe it in. Showers and fountains are common
sources. The name dates back to 1976, when an outbreak among people at an American
Leoion convention in Philadelphia affected 182 people and killed 29 of them.

People most at risk include the ilderty, smokers, people with suppressed immune systems
and diabetics.

Last year, the CDC reports, 4,294 cases were reported. So far this year, 1,813 cases have

been reported.

Deadly Leqionnaires' outbreak at Atlanta hotel is the larqest on record in Georgia

It's not yet clear if the pandemic has worsened the problem, or perhaps eased it because
people are not gathering at large hotels or working in big factory buildings as much, said
Chris Edens, an epidemiologist on CDC's Legionella team. He said state health
departments that norma.lly monitor and report cases of Legionella infection are tied up
dealing with coronavirus.

And no national entity systematically c'hecks buildings to see if the bacteria has started
growing in the plumbing. "There is currently no nationwide surveillance of water systems for
Legionella disease," Edens said.

As people return to work and start to travel more, hospitals and clinics need to think about
the possibility of Legionella, Edens said. "Flu and coronavirus are not the only things that
can cause severe pneumonia," he said. lf people turn up with pneumonia, it's worth testing
them for Legionella - especially since it can be treated with antibiotics, unlike flu or
coronavirus.

New Jersev Health Department is investiqating a cjuster of Leqionnaires' disease cases

Many different buildings could be at risk, and building managers need to be aware during
prolonged closures. "We are talking hotels, we are talking large office buildings, we are

2



even talk¡ng certain kinds of factories ... a lot of those buildings have been shut down,"
Edens told CNN.

"This water has been sitting and could be at risk of Legionella growth."

Poorly maintained cooling towers are another potentialsource.

Disnevland shuts down coolinq towers over Legionnaires'cases

The fix is not difficult. "You want to keep the cold water cold and you want to keep your hot
water hot," Edens said. Legionella flourishes at temperatures between 80' and 120"
Fahrenheit. lt's killed by chlorination and other disinfecting routines, but the bacteria can
grow into mats that create hard-to-dislodge sludge inside pipes, Edens said.

"One of the things that we typically recommend in buildings that have been disused is

flushing," he said.

"That can be as simple as turning the faucet on. Let cold or hot water course through the
system. Keep that water inoving."

Legionella is not the only risk, by the way, "There's lots of different waterborne pathogens,"
Edens said. "There are certainly other bugs out there."

"These can include other microbial hazards, such as non-tuberculous mycobacteria,
changes in water chemistry that lead to corrosion, leaching of metals (such as lead) into
stagnant water, disinfection by-products, and sewer gases that enter buildings through dry
sanitary sewer drain traps," it says.
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The Virus Detectives: Tracking COVID-19 in
Bay Area Wastewater
LORI POTTINGER åt}üI-}S'I'3, 2û2fl

With the number of COVID-19 cases rising, public health officials are struggling to keep up

with testing and monitoring. Because wastewater barries the virus, it can provide a window

into outbreaks. We talked to Eileen White, director of wastewater at the East Bay Municipal

Utilities District IEBMUDJ, about the agency's role in tracking the spread of the virus.

PPIC: What is EBMUD doing to monitor COVID-19?

EILEEN WHITE: We've been working on this ever since the Grancl Princess Cr,uise ship

arrivecl at the Port of Oakland with C0VID-19 in its wastewater. We reached out to the

Alameda County Department of Public Health and the Centers for Disease Control (CDC) to

confirm that they agreed with our approach to managing the ship's sewage while

protecting our wastewater workers. Since then we've been monitoring sewage in our

service area to see how much virus it contains.

Testing wastewater is a very efficient way to learn about the virus. We can take samples at

strategic locations to identify the prevalence of CÔVID-l9. You can test areas with nursing

homes or schools, for example, It's like detective worh finding the specific sewersheds

where the virus is rising. This doesn't replace individual tests. But because lab backlogs are

L



making it ilarct to proccss individual tests for thtl virus in a tinrcly way, testinp¡ wastcwater

can help guicle public health cle¡rartments where they neecì to ramp up incliviclual testing.

A number of studies fiom around the worlcl have demonstrated lhat testirtg werstewater

influent is a cost-effective way to dctect ancl track rcgional COVID-19 or¡tbfeal<s. trt costs

rnore than $10û per person to be testecl; for tire salne rì-Ioney, a wastewater sarnple will

show prevaìence of the infection in more thatr a thous¿lud people. Ïlere at HEMUD we't:e

worl<ing to get our analytical methoels finahzed-wc are mr¡ving quicl<ly atrd pr"lshing ltard.

We have also been sending samples to the University of South Carolina, rvhich has ¿l l¿lb

equip¡red for this l<incl of worÌ<, and are also parlnering witli the CDC, UC Berkeley, attrcl

Stanford"

FFtrC: What c¿rn wastewater testing show ¿lboitt the vin:s in a commttnity?

EW: Testing wastewater alìows us to monit<;r trencls Ín rc'al time, evaluate coittmunity

presence aud infection rates, prioritize focus areas, ancl observe the irnpact of sheifer-irl-

place orclers. It gives public health clepartments a leading indicator of infection rates rather

than the lagging indicator of casc counts, which only occut' mâny days after Ínfcct,ion. 'Iì"ris

¿tllows them to figure out in advance how the clisease wili increase in ¿l particular ilrea, and

to get hospitals ancl lCUs reacly for a surge in c¿rses.

The unfortunate realily is there is no vaccine yet, not enough testing capacity, ¿rnd it's

taking too long to get results. We're not yet al a stage yet where we can predict exact

numtrers, but this clata is a valuahle inclic¿rtor of where to increase testing.

PPIC; Is funding for this type of monitoring an issue?

EW: The analytical worì< is the biggest cost. Matry wastewater zlgencies in the llaSr Area and

througlrout tlie statc are interestecl in gctting thcir rn¡astewater testecl for CÛVID-19. This is

an areã where cooperartion and capacity shalrin¡; among w¿rs[ewa[er :lgencies ilre proving

extremely important. We are pursuing funding tû pay for this analytical wr¡rl< frorn ¿l

number of sources-the CDC, the state, and some fbunclations. This effort is tal<ing our

rnission of protecting public health to a new level, and we're gratified to be able to play a

rolc in trying to stop the spread of this gìobal pandemic.
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COVID-19 Relief Negotiations Remain at Stalemate; NACWA
Continues Strong Push for Water Assistance

[August 5, 2020) - Since the Senate .Republican majority's release last week of their
proposed next COVID-19 relief package as a counter to the House Democratic majority
HEROES Act, which passed the House in May, negotiations on finalizing a next COVID-19

relief/stimulus package have remained at a stalemate,

House and Senate negotiators had hoped to reach a deal by last Friday, fuly 3L, before
current enhanced unemployment benefits expired at midnight and Members of Congress

were scheduled to leave town until after Labor Day for the August recess,

Aside from the strong partisan divisions between the House and Senate bills, Senate

Republicans continue to struggle internally to come to a legislative consensus which has

exacerbated the current stalemate. At this point, it is unclear if and when a consensus will
be reached on the next COVID-L9 package and whät the scope of it will be.

Despite this, NACWA has continued its Congressional engagement on the importance of
including the water sector in the next package. In response to direct water ratepayer
assistance not being included i! the Senate proposal, and the release of a report by the
Senate Environment & Public Works (EPW) Democrat minority that highlighted the "need"
for a federal moratorium on water shutoffs, NACWA sent a letter this week to Capitol Hill
further urging the importance of federal financial assistance for public water utilities and
strongly cautioning that no moratoriums on shutoffs are acceptable absent commensurate
federal support to cover unpaid local rates.

Specifically, the NACWA letter requests Congress provide at least $4 billion in emergency
federal assistance to help address low-income ratepayer needs during the ongoing COVID-

L9 pandemic, noting that federal support programs already exist for energy and food
assistance that are not linked to an emergency declaration. Furthermore, the letter firmly
states NACWA's opposition to any national moratorium that is not directly tied to the local
receipt of federal funding to cover a utility's financial losses and that any federal
moratoriums must be limited to the duration of the COVID-L9 pandemic.

As negotiations continue, NACWA urges all menibers to reach out to their Senators as

soon as possible to share their local experiences as it relates to delinquent accounts,
suspending water shutoffs. lost commercial revenues. and the resulting financial
pressure on utilities. You can feel free to use any or all of NACWA's letter in your
communication.

In the meantime, NACWA continues its near daily engagement with Congressional
Leadership and other key Members of Çongress on these issues. Please contact NACWA's
legislative team, Kristina Surfus or þsodsAkovic, with any questions or to discuss COVID-

19 Congressional actions.



Competition set in five council races in election

NOVEMBER

By Richard Halstead

rha I s t c adîù.mari n i i. com

Candidates will compete in five Marin council races in the Nov' 3 election'

Co¡rpetitive council races are set in five of the six Marin municipalities where incumbents'

terms are ending.

The extended fililg period for candidates seeking local offices closed at 5 p.m. 'Wednesday.

Candidates filed to challenge incumbents in San Rafael, Sausalito, San Anselmo, Fairfax and

Belvedere. In Tiburon only the two incumbents - David Kulik and Holli Thier - filed.

Sausalito has the most candidates in the hunt with six - Melissa Blaustein, Aaron Singer, Joan

Cox, Janelle Kellman, Vicki Nichols and Ian Sobieski - competing for three seats.

Sobeiski, who filed after the initial deadline on Friday, wrote in an email, "We have an

embarrassment of riches in Sausalito with a lot of good candidates. I bring my life experience as

an adviser and investor into small companies, from restaurants to high tech startups."

There weïe no late filers in any other council races.

The San Rafael City Council and several boards in San Rafael and Novato - including the San

Rafael Board of Education, the Novato Unifred school board, the North Marin water board, the

Novato Sanitary District board and the Novato Fire Protection District board - have switched

from at-large elections and will be conducting their filst zone elections.

Maika Gulati, a current San Rafael Board of Education trustee whose term is ending, is running

unopposed

for the new San Rafael City Council District 1 seat. District 1 includes San Rafael's Canal

neighborhood, where alarge number of the county's Latino population lives.

Two other San Rafael Board of Education trustees - Rachel Keftz and Greg Knell - are

running for San Rafael's new District !
seat, which includes Terra Linda. Incumbent John Gamblin, who was appointed to the council in

2014 to replace Damon Connolly, is also running for that seat.

Gina Daly and Samantha Ramirezhave filed to run for the new Area 1 seat on the San Rafael

Board of Education. Knell would have been the Area 1 incumbent had he chosen to seek re-

election.
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Councilwoman Kate Colin and Mahmoucl Shirazi, who operates a small market in downtown

San Rafael, will compete to replace Mayor Gary Phillips, who is stepping down after serving two

terms.

In San Anselmo, Eileen Burke and Ann Politzer will compete with incumbents Brian Colbert,

John Wright and Alexis Fineman for three seats.

In Fairfax, Chance Cutrano and Joe McGarry will com-

ELECTION >) PAGE 4
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pete with incumbents Barbara Coler, John Reed, and Bruce Ackerman for three seats'

I1 Belvedere, Planning Commissioner James Lynch, and residents Steve Block and Chelsea

Schlu¡t have filed to run for City Council along with incumbent Nancy Kemnitzer. There are

three seats available.

In some other local races, candidates did declare their intent after the initial deadline on Friday.

One race that took shape late was the competition for two seats on the Mill Valley School

District board. Joan Hottenstein, Michele Hodge, Elli Abdoli and incumbent Bob Jacobs are

running.

The number of candidates seeking to replace Armando Quintero as the Division 2 representative

on the Marin Municipal Vy'ater District board also itrcreased after the initial deadline. Mark

Lubamersky and Monty Schmitt joined Carsten Andersen as candidates for that position. Chris

Hobbs is running to unseat Larry Russell, who holds the Division 5 seat on the MMV/D board.

The two incumbents whose terms are ending on the Marin Healthcare District board, Harris

Simmonds and Ann Sparkrnan, are seeking re-election. They are being challenged by Edward

Alfrey, Marin- Health Medical Center's trauma surgery director, and Melissa Bradley.

Larry Bedard, chainnan of the district board, said at its Tuesday night meeting the board voted to

switch to district

elections following completion of the 2020 census. The board made the decision under the threat

of a lawsuit. Bedard has endorsed Alfrey.

All four of the Marin Community College District's board members whose terms are ending -
Stephanie O'Brien, Philip Kranenburg, Eva Long and Stuarl Tanenberg- filed to seek re-

election along with two challengers, Robbie Powelson and Paul Da Silva.
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Felicia Agrelius is running to unseat incumbent Robert Goldman who holds the Area 4 seat on

the Marin County Board of Education.

Lisa Bennett, Jennifer Conway, Alena Maunder and Yasmine McGrane will compete for two

seats on the Sausalito Marin City School District board'

Desmond Fambrini and Julie Jacobson filed to compete for the new Area 3 seat on the Novato

Unified School District board.

Five candidates - Blandon Johnson, Tiffany McElroy, Mandy Downing and incumbents Karen

Loebbaka and Leslie Harlander - will compete for two seats on the Tamalpais Union High

School District board.

A complete list of candidates who filed is atbit.lyl2DPW4jo
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